REGULAR MEETING OF THE DENNIS TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE —

Meeting called to order:

NOVEMBER 28, 2023 — 5:30 P.M.

The meeting is now open. Adequate notice of the meeting was provided by posting a copy of the
time and place on the Municipal Clerk’s bulletin board and by publishing notice in the official

newspaper on the Township.

Will the Clerk please call the Roll to determine a quorum.

Will everyone please rise to salute the flag.

Public Comment on Agenda Items:

Review of Consent & Regular Agenda Items

Consent Agenda:

Minutes

Res. #2023-163

Res. #2023-164
Res. #2023-165

Res. #2023-166

Res. #2023-167

Res. #2023-168

Ord. #2023-11

11/14/2023 Work Session & Regular Meeting.

Authorizing the Refund of a Tax Overpayment — Block
253.01, Lot 3.

Requesting a Transfer of Funds.

Authorizing a Professional Services Contract with Fralinger
Engineering, PA for Engineering Services in Connection
DCA Small Cities CDBG Project #23-0868-00 -
Recreational Center — ADA Playground Upgrades.
Authorizing a Shared Services Agreement By and Between
the Township of Dennis and the Dennis Township Board of
Education for Snow Removal.

Authorizing a Professional Services Contract with Fralinger
Engineering, PA for Engineering and Inspection/Contract
Administration Services in Regards to the Halbe Lane
Resurfacing — 2024 NJDOT Project.

Providing for a Meeting not Open to the Public in
Accordance with the Provisions of the New Jersey Open
Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 — Matters Relating

to Litigation, Negotiations and the Attorney-Client
Privilege.

An Ordinance of the Township of Dennis, County of Cape
May and State of New Jersey, Amending Chapter 163 —
Stormwater Control and Chapter 185 — Zoning of the Code
of the Township of Dennis. (for Introduction & First
Reading).



REGULAR MEETING OF THE DENNIS TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE -
NOVEMBER 28, 2023 - 5:30 P.M. (page 2)

Regular Agenda:

Ord. #2023-12 An Ordinance of the Township of Dennis Establishing Part
I1, Chapter 163B of the Dennis Township Code, Privately
Owned Salt Storage. (for Introduction and First Reading).

Motion for the Bills

Motion authorizing the payment of the bills, providing that proper vouchers have been filed and
that funds are available. General Account  $242,243.04

Administrative Reports

General Public Comments

Committee Comments

Executive Session

Adjournment



TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-163

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE REFUND OF A
TAX OVERPAYMENT - BLOCK 253.01, LOT 3

WHEREAS, the Tax Collector’s Office has notified the Clerk of a tax overpayment on Block
253.01, Lot 3; and

WHEREAS, the overpayment was a result of the property owner being awarded a 100%
Disabled Veteran Deduction; and

WHEREAS, the amount of the overpayment requested to be refunded for Block 253.01, Lot 3
is nine hundred nineteen dollars and three cents ($919.03).

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of
Dennis, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, that the Chief Financial Officer be and is
hereby authorized and directed to refund the $919.03 to the following:

Block 253.01, Lot 3

Corelogic Centralized Refunds
P.O. Box 5202

Coppell, TX 75019-9760

ATTEST ATTEST

Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor

MOTION | SECOND | YES | NO | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

VanArtsdalen

Germanio

Cox

Turner

Matalucci




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-163
PAGE 2

This is to certify that this is a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Dennis Township
Committee at their regular meeting held on November 28, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. at the Dennis
Township Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road, Dennisville, NJ,

ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-164
RESOLUTION REQUESTING TRANSFER OF FUNDS
BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the Township of Dennis, County of Cape
May, State of New Jersey, that the Chief Financial Officer be and is hereby authorized and

directed to make the transfer(s) FROM and TO the APPROPRIATIONS for the year 2023
named herein.

SEE ATTACHED SCHEDULE

ATTEST ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor

MOTION | SECOND | YES | NO | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

VanArisdalen

Germanio

Cox

Turner

Matalucci

This is to certify that this is a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Dennis Township
Committee at their regular meeting held on November 28, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. at the Dennis
Township Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road, Dennisville, NJ.

ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk




TRANSFER RESOLUTION ATTACHMENT 11/28/23

Account Name Account Number To From
Public Works - O/E 3-01-26-290-036 5,000.00
Public Works - S&W 3-01-26-290-011 5,000.00
Recreation - O/E 3-01-28-370-036 5,000.00
Recreation - S&W 3-01-28-370-011 5,000.00

S 10,000.00 $ 10,000.00



TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-165

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
WITH FRALINGER ENGINEERING, PA FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES IN
CONNECTION TO THE DCA SMALL CITIES CDBG PROJECT #23-0868-00

WHEREAS, Dennis Township has received grant funding from the New Jersey
DCA Small Cities Community Development Block Grant for ADA Playground Upgrades
at the Recreation Complex; and

WHEREAS, the Township Committee believe it is in the best interest of the
Township to take advantage of said grant funds; and

WHEREAS, Fralinger Engineering, PA are the Engineer for Dennis Township,
and

WHEREAS, Fralinger Engineering, PA has submitted a proposal, for said project,
in an amount not to exceed $37,000.00. for Professional Engineering, Field Survey, Site
Design, Plans/Specifications, Bidding, Inspection, Contract Administration, Project
Close-Out and Final As-Built Survey Services; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Finance Officer has issued a Certification of Funds for
said project.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the
Township of Dennis, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, that a contract
for the same is hereby awarded to Fralinger Engineering, PA as a Professional Services
Contract, in an amount not to exceed $37,000.00, for said services.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Municipal Clerk be and is hereby
authorized and directed to publish in the official newspaper of the Township a copy of
this Resolution,

ATTEST ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-165
PAGE 2

MOTION ;| SECOND | YES | NO | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

VanArtsdalen

Germanio

Cox

Turner

Matalucci

This is to certify that this is a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Dennis Township
Committee at their regular meeting held on November 28, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. (prevailing
time) at the Dennis Township Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road,
Dennisville, NJ.

ATTEST
Jacqueline B, Justice, RMC/Clerk




CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION
OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS
FOR CONTRACT AWARDS

I, Jessica Bishop, Chief Financial Officer of the Township of Dennis, hereby
certify that $37,000.00 is available in the following appropriations:

Budget Account Name: RECREATION TRUST
ENGINEERING O/E
STATE & FEDERAL AID COORD.

Budget Account Number:  T-05-00-000-202
3-01-20-165-020
3-01-20-100-028
These funds are sufficient to meet the contractual commitment providing for:
Field Survey, Site Design, Plans/Specifications, Bidding, Inspection, Contract
Administration, Project Close-Out and Final As-Built Survey for the Recreation Center —
ADA Playground Upgrades — Project No. 31171.00 to:
Fralinger Engineering
629 Shiloh Pike
Bridgeton, NJ 08302

I further certify that this commitment together with all previously made
commitments does not exceed the appropriation balance available for this purpose, to the

best of my knowledge.
ATTEST:
ssica Bishop, CMFO, QPA

DATE: IMEE




TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-166

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN THE TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS AND
THE DENNIS TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
FOR SNOW REMOVAL

WHEREAS, the Township of Dennis and the Dennis Township Board of Education are
desirous on reaching a mutually beneficial arrangement for snow removal; and

WHEREAS, a Shared Services Agreement has been prepared to allow for snow removal
under terms agreeable to the Township and the Board of Education, a copy of which is
annexed to this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the Township is authorized to enter into such agreements under the
authority of N.J.S.A. 40:8A-1 ef seq.; and

WHEREAS, the Township of Dennis finds that such an agreement in this instance would
be in the interests of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the Township;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the
Township of Dennis in the County of Cape May and the State of New Jersey, duly
assembled in public session this 28" day of November, 2023, as follows:

1. The Preamble of this Resolution is hereby adopted and incorporated herein by
reference;

2. The aforementioned and annexed Shared Services Agreement is hereby
approved;

3. The Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute the said
Shared Services Agreement on behalf of the Township of Dennis.

ATTEST ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-166
PAGE 2

MOTION | SECOND | YES | NO | ABSTAIN { ABSENT

VanArtsdalen

Germanio

Cox

Turner

Matalucci

This is to certify that this is a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Dennis Township
Committee at their regular meeting held on November 28, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. at the
Dennis Township Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road, Dennisville, NJ.

ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk




INTERLOCAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
571 PETERSBURG RQAD
DENNIS TOWNSHIP, NJ 08214
and

DENNIS TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

DENNIS TOWNSHIP, NJ 08214

This Agreement dated January 1st, 2023 until December 31, 2023, by and
between:

The Township of Dennis, hereinafter “Township”, a municipal subdivision of the state of

New Jersey, having governmental offices at 571 Petersburg Rd., Dennis Township, New Jersey
and

The Dennis Township School District, hereinafter School District;

WHEREAS the Township and School District have a vested interest in preserving the
safety of the citizens utilizing the Schoel District’s school system; and

WHEREAS in order to preserve the safety of our citizens during wintery conditions, the
School District requires that their premises be free and clear of hazardous conditions as further
set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Township has the adequate equipment and resources to assist the School
District in safeguarding against these hazardous conditions; and

WHEREAS pursuant to N.J.S. 40A4:65-1 et seq. the Shared Services Act, provides a

mechanism for making such contracts between public agencies; and



NOW THEREFORE be it agreed as follows:

1.

The Township shall snow plow and salt School District property during storms and
snow events that prohibit the School District from opening and/or when the School
District is closed for holidays and weekends.

The Township will also assist in the snow plowing and salting of the School District
properties after Township responsibilities (i.e. Township roads and facilities) have
been addressed during storms and snow events that do not cause the School District
to close, cause a delayed opening, or when the timing of the snow does not cause a
conflict with the Township’s responsibilities.

In consideration of the above services, the School District shall provide the
Township an allowance for summer camp busing services up to $4,500.00 per year.
In the event there is no snow plow or salt needed during the school year, the School
District shall still provide the Township an allowance for summer camp busing
services up to $4,500.00 per year.

The School District shall indemnify and hold the Township harmless with regard to
any liability which may occur as a result of the snow plowing and salting services set
forth herein and shall name the Township as an additional insured on the School
District liability policy of insurance.

Proof of such Insurance shall be provided to the Dennis Township Municipal Clerk

upon the execution of this agreement.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Township and the School District have each
hereunto caused their proper officers to sign and their respective corporate seals to
be affixed hereto, the day and year first written above.

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

By:
ZETH MATALUCCI, Mayor

ATTEST:

JACKIE JUSTICE, Clerk

DENNIS TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

By:

ATTEST:




TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-167

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
WITH FRALINGER ENGINEERING, PA FOR ENGINEERING, SURVEYING
AND INSPECTION/CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION SERVICES IN REGARDS
TO THE HALBE LANE RESURFACING - 2024 NJDOT PROJECT

WHEREAS, Dennis Township has received grant funding from the New Jersey
Department of Transportation’s (NJDOT) Municipal Aid Program for the Resurfacing of
Halbe Lane; and

WHEREAS, the Township Committee believe it is in the best interest of the
Township to take advantage of said grant funds; and

WHEREAS, Fralinger Engineering, PA are the Engineer for Dennis Township,
and

WHEREAS, Fralinger Engineering, PA has submitted a proposal, for said project,
in an amount not to exceed $34,500.00. for Professional Engineering, Surveying, Bidding
and Inspection Services; and

WHEREAS, the Chief Finance Officer has issued a Certification of Funds for
said project.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the
Township of Dennis, in the County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, that a contract
for the same is hereby awarded to Fralinger Engineering, PA as a Professional Services
Contract, in an amount not to exceed $34,500.00, for professional engineering, surveying,
and inspection/contract administration services.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Municipal Clerk be and is hereby
authorized and directed to publish in the official newspaper of the Township a copy of
this Resolution.

ATTEST ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-167
PAGE 2

MOTION | SECOND | YES | NO | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

VanArtsdalen

Germanio

Cox

Turner

Matalucci

This is to certify that this is a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Dennis Township
Committee at their regular meeting held on November 28, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. (prevailing
time) at the Dennis Township Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road,
Dennisville, NJ,

ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk




CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER’S CERTIFICATION
OF AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS
FOR CONTRACT AWARDS

I, Jessica Bishop, Chief Financial Officer of the Township of Dennis, hereby
certify that $34,500.00 is available in the following appropriations:

Budget Account Name: ORD #2020-03
Budget Account Number:  C-04-55-020-115
These funds are sufficient to meet the contractual commitment providing for:

Engineering, Surveying and Inspection, Contract Administration Services for Halbe Lane
Resurfacing — 2024 NJDOT Project — Project No. 31158.00 to:

Fralinger Engineering
629 Shiloh Pike
Bridgeton, NJ 08302

I further certify that this commitment together with all previously made
commitments does not exceed the appropriation balance available for this purpose, to the

best of my knowledge.
ATTEST: M

ssica Bishop, CMFO, QPA

DATE: 11/22/23




TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

RESOLUTION NO, 2023-168

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR A MEETING NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE

NEW JERSEY OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12

WHEREAS, the Township Committee of the Township of Dennis is subject to certain
requirements of the Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-6 et seq; and

WHEREAS, the Open Public Meetings Act, N.J.S.A. 10:4-12, provides that an Executive
Session, not open to the public, may be held for certain specified purposes when authorized by
Resolution; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Township Committee of the Township of Dennis to discuss
in a session not open to the public certain matters relating to the item or items authorized by
N.J.S.A. 10:4-12 b and designated below:

(1)

)

€)

(4)

Matters Required by Law to be Confidential: Any matter which, by express
provision of Federal law or State statute or rule of court shall be rendered
confidential or excluded from the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act.

Matters Where the Release of Information Would Impair the Right to Receive
Funds: Any matter in which the release of information would impair a right to
receive funds from the Government of the United States.

Matters Involving Individual Privacy: Any material the disclosure of which
constitutes an unwarranted invasion of individual privacy such as any records,
data, reports, recommendations, or other personal material of any educational,
training, social service, medical, health, custodial, child protection, rehabilitation,
legal defense, welfare, housing, relocation, insurance and similar program or
institution operated by a public body pertaining to any specific individual
admitted to or served by such institution or program, including but not limited to
information relative to the individual, unless the individual concerned (or in the
case of a minor or incompetent, his guardian) shall request in writing that the
same be disclosed publicly.

Matters Relating to Collective Bargaining Agreements: Any collective
bargaining agreement, or the terms and conditions which are proposed for
inclusion in any collective bargaining agreement, including the negotiation of the
terms and conditions thereof with employees or representatives of employees of
the public body.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-168

PAGE 2

&)

(6)

(7

®)

€)

Matters Relating to the Purchase, Lease of Acquisition of Real Property or the
Investment of Public Funds: Any matter involving, the purchase, lease or
acquisition of real property with public funds, the setting of banking rates or
investment of public funds where it could adversely affect the public interest if
discussion of such matters were disclosed.

Matters Relating to Public Safety and Property: Any tactics and techniques
utilized in protecting the safety and property of the public, provided that their
disclosure could impair such protection. Any investigations of violations of
possible violations of the law.

Matters Relating to Litigation, Negotiations and the Attorney-Client Privilege:

Any pending or anticipated litigation or contract negotiation in which the public
body is, or may become a party. Any matters falling within the attorney-client
privilege, to the extent that confidentiality is required in order for the attorney to

exercise his ethical duties as a lawver.

Matters Relating to the Employment Relationship: Any matter involving the
employment, appointment, termination of employment, terms and conditions of
employment, evaluation of the performance of promotion or disciplining of any
specific prospective public officer or employee or current public officer or
employee employed or appointees whose rights could be adversely affected
request in writing that such matter or matters be discussed at a public meeting.

Matters Relating to the Potential Imposition of a Penalty: Any deliberations of a
public body occurring after a public hearing that may result in the imposition of a
specific civil penalty upon the responding party or the suspension or loss of a
license or permit belonging to the responding party bears responsibility.

NOW, THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township of
Dennis, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey, assembled in public session on November
28, 2023, that an Executive Session closed to the public shall be held on November 28, 2023
prior to the close of the above night’s meeting in the Dennis Township Municipal Complex, 571
Petersburg Road, Dennisville, New Jersey, for the discussion of matters relating to the specific
items designed above.



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-168
PAGE 3

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it is anticipated that the deliberations conducted in closed
session may be disclosed to the public upon the determination of the Township Committee that
the public interest will no longer be served by such confidentiality.

ATTEST ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor

MOTION | SECOND | YES | NO | ABSTAIN | ABSENT

VanArtsdalen

Germanio

Cox

Turner

Matalucci

This is to certify that this is a true copy of a Resolution adopted by the Dennis Township
Committee at their special meeting held on November 28, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. at the Dennis
Township Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road, Dennisville, NJ.

ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk




TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-11

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS, COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
AND STATE OF NEW JERSEY, AMENDING CHAPTER 163 -
STORMWATER CONTROL AND CHAPTER 185 — ZONING,
OF THE CODE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Protection Act (N.J.S.A. 13:18A-1) requires that the municipal
master plan and local land use ordinances of the Township of Dennis implement the objectives of the
Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan (N.J.A.C. 7:50) and conform with the minimum standards
contained therein; and

WHEREAS, the Pinelands Commission amended the stormwater regulations contained in the
Pinelands Comprehensive Management Plan, effective January 18, 2022.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the Township of
Dennis, County of Cape May and State of New Jersey, as follows:

SECTION 1: Chapter 163, Stormwater Control, Article II, Pinelands Area, is hereby repealed
and replaced in its entirety with the following:

Chapter 163 Stormwater Control

Article 11. Pinelands Area
§163-21. Scope and Purpose
A, Policy Statement

Flood control, groundwater recharge, erosion control and pollutant reduction shall be
achieved using stormwater management measures, including green infrastructure best
management practices (BMPs) and nonstructural stormwater management strategies. Green
infrastructure BMPs and low impact development should be utilized to meet the goal of
maintaining natural hydrology to reduce stormwater runoff volume, reduce erosion,
encourage infiltration and groundwater recharge, and reduce pollution. Green infrastructure
BMPs and low impact development should be developed based upon physical site
conditions and the origin, nature and the anticipated quantity, or amount, of potential
pollutants. Multiple stormwater management BMPs may be necessary to achieve the
established performance standards for water quality, quantity, and groundwater recharge
contained in this Article.

B. Purpose



The purpose of this Article is to establish, within the Pinelands Area portion of Dennis
Township, minimum stormwater management requirements and controls as authorized by
the Pinelands Protection Act (N.J.S.A. 13:18A-1 et seq.) and consistent with the Pinelands
Comprehensive Management Plan (CMP) (N.J.A.C. 7:50-1.1 et seq.) and the New Jersey
Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) Stormwater Management Regulations
(N.J.A.C. 7:8-1.1 et seq.). The standards in this Article are intended to minimize the
adverse impact of stormwater runoff on water quality and water quantity, to facilitate
groundwater recharge, and to control and minimize soil erosion, stream channel erosion,
sedimentation and pollution associated with stormwater runoff. Moreover, Pinelands Area
resources are to be protected in accordance with the antidegradation policies contained in
the New Jersey Surface Water Quality Standards (N.J.A.C. 7:9B-1.1 et seq.). Additionally,
this Article is intended to ensure the adequacy of existing and proposed culverts and bridges
and to protect public safety through the proper design and operation of stormwater BMPs.
If there are any conflicts between a provision required by the Pinelands CMP and a
provision required by the NJDEP, the Pinelands CMP provision shall apply.

. Applicability

(1) The terms “development,” “major development” and “minor development” are defined
in §163-22 in accordance with the Pinelands CMP (N.J.A.C. 7:50-2.11) and differ from
the definitions of “development” and “major development” contained in the NJDEP
Stormwater Management Regulations (N.J.A.C. 7:8-1.2).

(2) This Article shall apply within the Pinelands Area to all major development, and to
minor development meeting the following criteria:

(a) Development involving the construction of four or fewer dwelling units;

(b) Development involving any non-residential use and resulting in an increase of
greater than 1,000 square feet of regulated motor vehicle surfaces; and

(c) Development involving the grading, clearing, or disturbance of an area in excess of
5,000 square feet within any five-year period. For development meeting this
criterion, the stormwater management standards for major development set forth in
this Article shall apply.

(3) This Article shall apply to all development meeting the criteria of (2) above that is
undertaken by Dennis Township.

(4) Except as provided in §163-30, the exemptions, exceptions, applicability standards, and
waivers of strict compliance contained in the NJDEP Stormwater Management
Regulations at N.J.LA.C. 7:8-1.1 et seq. shall not apply within the Pinelands Area.

. Compatibility with Other Permit and Ordinance Requirements

(1) Development approvals issued pursuant to this Article are to be considered an integral
part of development approvals and do not relieve the applicant of the responsibility to

2



secure required permits or approvals for activities regulated by any other applicable
code, rule, act, or ordinance. In their interpretation and application, the provisions of
this Article shall be held to be the minimum requirements for the promotion of the
public health, safety, and general welfare.

(2) This Article is not intended to interfere with, abrogate, or annul any other ordinances,
rule or regulation, statute, or other provision of law except that, where any provision of
this Article imposes restrictions different from those imposed by any other ordinance,
rule or regulation, or other provision of law, the more restrictive provisions or higher
standards shall control.

(3) In the event that a regional stormwater management plan(s) is prepared and formalty
adopted pursuant to N.J.A.C. 7:8-1.1 et seq. for any drainage area(s) or watershed(s) of
which Dennis Township is a part, the stormwater provisions of such a plan(s) shall be
adopted by Dennis Township within one year of the adoption of a Regional Stormwater
Management Plan (RSWMP) as an amendment to an Areawide Water Quality
Management Plan. Local ordinances proposed to implement the RSWMP shall be
submitted to the Pinelands Commission for certification within six months of the
adoption of the RSWMP per N.J.A.C. 7:8 and the Pinelands CMP.

§163-22. Definitions

For the purpose of this Article, the following terms, phrases, words and their derivations shall
have the meanings stated herein unless their use in the text of this Article clearly demonstrates
a different meaning. When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense
include the future, words used in the plural number include the singular number, and words
used in the singular number include the plural number. The word "shall" is always mandatory
and not merely directory. The definitions below are the same as or based on the corresponding
definitions in the NJDEP Stormwater Management Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:8-1.2 unless otherwise
defined in the Pinelands CMP at N.J.A.C. 7:50-2.11 in which case the definition corresponds to
the CMP definition.

“Compaction” means the increase in soil bulk density.

“Contributory drainage area” means the area from which stormwater runoff drains to a
stormwater management measure, not including the area of the stormwater management
measure itself,

“County review agency” means an agency designated by the County Commissioners to review
municipal stormwater management plans and implementing ordinance(s). The county review
agency may either be:

(1) A county planning agency; or
(2) A county water resource association created under N.J.S.A 58:16A-55.5, if the

ordinance or resolution delegates authority to approve, conditionally approve, or
disapprove municipal stormwater management plans and implementing ordinances.



“Design engineer” means a person professionally qualified and duly licensed in New Jersey to
perform engineering services that may include, but not necessarily be limited to, development
of project requirements, creation and development of project design and preparation of
drawings and specifications.

"Development" means the change of or enlargement of any use or disturbance of any land, the
performance of any building or mining operation, the division of land into two or more parcels,
and the creation or termination of rights of access or riparian rights including, but not limited
to:

(1) A change in type of use of a structure or land;

(2) A reconstruction, alteration of the size, or material change in the external appearance of
a structure or land,

(3) A material increase in the intensity of use of land, such as an increase in the number of
businesses, manufacturing establishments, offices or dwelling units in a structure or on
land,

(4) Commencement of resource extraction or drilling or excavation on a parcel of land;
(5) Demolition of a structure or removal of trees;

(6) Commencement of forestry activities;

(7) Deposit of refuse, solid or liquid waste or fill on a parcel of land,;

(8) In connection with the use of land, the making of any material change in noise levels,
thermal conditions, or emissions of waste material; and

(9) Alteration, either physically or chemically, of a shore, bank, or flood plain, seacoast,
river, stream, lake, pond, wetlands or artificial body of water.

In the case of development on agricultural land, i.e. lands use for an agricultural use or
purpose as defined at N.J.A.C. 7:50-2.11, development means: any activity that requires a State
permit, any activity reviewed by the County Agricultural Board (CAB) and the State
Agricultural Development Commiittee (SADC), and municipal review of any activity not
cxempted by the Right to Farm Act, N.I.S.A. 4:1C-1 et seq.

“Disturbance” means the placement or reconstruction of impervious surface or motor vehicle
surface, or exposure and/or movement of soil or bedrock or clearing, cutting, or removing of
vegetation. Milling and repaving is not considered disturbance for the purposes of this
definition.

“Drainage area” means a geographic area within which stormwater runoff, sediments, or
dissolved materials drain to a particular receiving waterbody or to a particular point along a
receiving waterbody.



“Environmentally critical area” means an area or feature which is of significant environmental
value, including but not limited to: stream corridors, natural heritage priority sites, habitats of
endangered or threatened species, large areas of contiguous open space or upland forest, steep
slopes, and well head protection and groundwater recharge areas. Habitats of endangered or
threatened species are identified using the NJDEP Landscape Project as approved by the
NIDEP Endangered and Nongame Species Program.

“Erosion” means the detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments by water, wind, ice,
or gravity.

“Green infrastructure” means a stormwater management measure that manages stormwater
close to its source by:

(1) Treating stormwater runoff through infiltration into subsoil;
(2) Treating stormwater runoff through filtration by vegetation or soil; or
(3) Storing stormwater runoff for reuse.

"High Pollutant Loading Areas” means areas in industrial and commercial developments where
solvents and/or petroleum products are loaded/unloaded, stored, or applied, areas where
pesticides are loaded/unloaded or stored; areas where hazardous materials are expected to be
present in greater than “reportable quantities” as defined by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 302.4; areas where recharge would be inconsistent with
NJDEP approved remedial action work plan or landfill closure plan and areas with high risks
for spills of toxic materials, such as gas stations and vehicle maintenance facilities.

"HUC-11" or "hydrologic unit code 11" means an area within which water drains to a particular
receiving surface water body, also known as a subwatershed, which is identified by an 11-digit
hydrologic unit boundary designation, delineated within New J ersey by the United States
Geological Survey.

"HUC 14" or "hydrologic unit code 14" means an area within which water drains to a particular
receiving surface water body, also known as a subwatershed, which is identified by a 14-digit
hydrologic unit boundary designation, delineated within New J ersey by the United States
Geological Survey.

“Impervious surface” means any surface that has been compacted or covered with a layer of
material so that it prevents, impedes or slows infiltration or absorption of fluid, including
stormwater directly into the ground, and results in either reduced groundwater recharge or
increased stormwater runoff sufficient to be classified as impervious in Urban Areas by the
United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service Title 210 -
Engineering, 210-3-1 - Small Watershed Hydrology (WINTR-55) Version 1.0, incorporated
herein by reference, as amended and supplemented, availabie with user guide and tutorials at
http://www.wsi.nres.usda.gov/products/W2Q/H&H/T ools_Models/WinTr55.html or at Natural
Resources Conservation Service, 220 Davidson Avenue, Somerset, NJ 08873. Such surfaces
may have varying degrees of permeability.



“Infiltration” is the process by which water seeps into the soil from precipitation.

“Major development” means any division of land into five or more lots; any construction or
expansion of any housing development of five or more dwelling units; any construction or
expansion of any commercial or industrial use or structure on a site of more than three acres; or
any grading, clearing or disturbance of an area in excess of 5,000 square feet.

"Minor development” means all development other than major development.

“Motor vehicle” means land vehicles propelled other than by muscular power, such as
automobiles, motorcycles, autocycles, and low speed vehicles. For the purposes of this
definition, motor vehicle does not include farm equipment, snowmobiles, all-terrain vehicles,
motorized wheelchairs, go-carts, gas buggies, golf carts, ski-slope grooming machines, or
vehicles that run only on rails or tracks.

“Motor vehicle surface” means any pervious or impervious surface that is intended to be used
by “motor vehicles” and/or aircraft, and is directly exposed to precipitation including, but not
limited to, driveways, parking areas, parking garages, roads, racetracks, and runways.

“New Jersey Stormwater Best Management Practices (BMP) Manual” or “BMP Manual”
means the manual maintained by the NJDEP providing, in part, design specifications, removal
rates, calculation methods, and soil testing procedures approved by the NJDEP as being
capable of contributing to the achievement of the stormwater management standards specified
in this Article. The BMP Manual is periodically amended by the NJDEP as necessary to
provide design specifications on additional best management practices and new information on
already included practices reflecting the best available current information regarding the
particular practice and the NJDEP’s determination as to the ability of that best management
practice to contribute to compliance with the standards contained in this Article. Alternative
stormwater management measures, removal rates, or calculation methods may be utilized,
subject to any limitations specified in this Article, provided the design engineer demonstrates to
the municipality, in accordance with §163-23F and N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2(g), that the proposed
measure and its design will contribute to achievement of the design and performance standards
established by this Article.

“Nutrient” means a chemical element or compound, such as nitrogen or phosphorus, which is
essential to and promotes the development of organisms.

"Permeability” means the rate at which water moves through a unit area of soil, rock, or other
material at hydraulic gradient of one.

“Person” means an individual, corporation, public agency, business trust, partnership,
association, two or more persons having a joint or common interest, or any other legal entity.

“Pollutant” means any dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, filter backwash, sewage,
garbage, refuse, oil, grease, sewage sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials,
medical wastes, radioactive substance (except those regulated under the Atomic Energy Act of
1954, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 2011 et seq.)), thermal waste, wrecked or discarded
equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, industrial, municipal, agricultural, and construction waste or

6



runoff, or other residue discharged directly or indirectly to the land, ground waters or surface
waters of the State, or to a domestic treatment works. “Pollutant” includes both hazardous and
nonhazardous pollutants.

“Recharge” means the amount of water from precipitation that infiltrates into the ground and is
not evapotranspired.

“Regulated motor vehicle surface” means any of the following, alone or in combination:
(1) A net increase in motor vehicle surface; and/or

(2) The total area of motor vehicle surface that is currently receiving water quality
treatment either by vegetation or soil, by an existing stormwater management measure,
or by treatment at a wastewater treatment plant, where the water quality treatment will
be modified or removed.

"Seasonal high water table” means the level below the natural surface of the ground to which
water seasonally rises in the soil in most years.

“Sediment” means solid material, mineral or organic, that is in suspension, is being transported,
or has been moved from its site of origin by air, water or gravity as a product of erosion.

“Site” means the lot or lots upon which development is to occur or has occurred.
“Soil” means all unconsolidated mineral and organic material of any origin.

“Source material” means any material(s) or machinery, located at an industrial facility, that is
directly or indirectly related to process, manufacturing or other industrial activities, which
could be a source of pollutants in any industrial stormwater discharge to groundwater. Source
materials include, but are not limited to, raw materials; intermediate products; final products;
waste materials; by-products; industrial machinery and fuels, and lubricants, solvents, and
detergents that are related to process, manufacturing, or other industrial activities that are
exposed to stormwater.

“Stormwater” means water resulting from precipitation (including rain and snow) that runs off
the land’s surface, is transmitted to the subsurface, or is captured by separate storm sewers or
other sewage or drainage facilities, or conveyed by snow removal equipment.

“Stormwater management BMP” means an excavation or embankment and related areas
designed to retain stormwater runoff. A stormwater management BMP may either be normally
dry (that is, a detention basin or infiltration system), retain water in a permanent pool (a
retention basin), or be planted mainly with wetland vegetation (most constructed stormwater
wetlands).

“Stormwater management measure” means any practice, technology, process, program, or other
method intended to control or reduce stormwater runoff and associated pollutants, or to induce
or control the infiltration or groundwater recharge of stormwater or to eliminate illicit or illegal
non-stormwater discharges into stormwater conveyances.

7



“Stormwater runoff” means water flow on the surface of the ground or in storm sewers,
resulting from precipitation.

“Waters of the State” means the ocean and its estuaries, all springs, streams, wetlands, and
bodies of surface or groundwater, whether natural or artificial, within the boundaries of the
State of New Jersey or subject to its jurisdiction.

“Wetlands” or “wetland” means lands which are inundated or saturated by water at a
magnitude, duration and frequency sufficient to support the growth of hydrophytes. Wetlands
include lands with poorly drained or very poorly drained soils as designated by the National
Cooperative Soils Survey of the Soil Conservation Service of the United States Department of
Agriculture. Wetlands include coastal wetlands and inland wetlands, including submerged
lands. The "New Jersey Pinelands Commission Manual for Identifying and Delineating
Pinelands Area Wetlands--a Pinelands Supplement to the Federal Manual for Identifying and
Delineating Jurisdictional Wetlands," dated January, 1991, as amended, may be utilized in
delineating the extent of wetlands based on the definitions of wetlands and wetlands soils
contained in N.J.A.C. 7:50-2.11, 6.3, 6.4 and 6.5.

“Wetland transition area” means an area within 300 feet of any wetland.
§163-23. Stormwater Management Requirements

A. Stormwater management measures for development regulated under this Article shall be
designed to provide erosion control, groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quantity
control and stormwater runoff quality treatment in accordance with this Article.

(1) Major development shall meet the minimum design and performance standards for
crosion control established under the Soil Erosion and Sediment Control Act, N.J.S.A.
4:24-39 et seq., and implementing rules at N.J.A.C. 2:90 and 16:25A.

(2) All development regulated under this Article shall meet the minimum design and
performance standards for groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality, and
stormwater runoff quantity at §163-230, P, and Q by incorporating green infrastructure
as provided at §163-23N.

B. All development regulated under this Article shall incorporate a maintenance plan for the
stormwater management measures in accordance with §163-29.

C. Stormwater management measures shall avoid adverse impacts of concentrated flow on
habitat for threatened and endangered species in accordance with N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2(c) and
N.J.A.C. 7:50-6.27 and 6.33.

D. Tables 1, 2, and 3 below summarize the ability of stormwater best management practices
identified and described in the New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual to satisfy the green
infrastructure, groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality and stormwater runoff
quantity standards specified in §163-23N, O, P, and Q. When designed in accordance with
the most current version of the New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual and this Article, the

8



stormwater management measures found in Tables 1, 2, and 3 are presumed to be capable
of providing stormwater controls for the design and performance standards as outlined in
the tables below. Upon amendments of the New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual to reflect
additions or deletions of BMPs meeting these standards, or changes in the presumed
performance of BMPs designed in accordance with the New Jersey Stormwater BMP
Manual, the NJDEP shall publish in the New Jersey Registers a notice of administrative
change revising the applicable table. The most current version of the BMP Manual can be
found on the NJDEP website at: https://njstormwater.org/bmp manual2 htm.

. Where the BMP tables at N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2(f) differ with Tables 1, 2 and 3 below due to
amendment, the BMP Tables at N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.2(f) shall take precedence, except that in all
cases the lowest point of infiltration must maintain a minimum separation of two (2) feet to
seasonal high water table as required by §163-23H(2) unless otherwise noted.



Table 1: Green Infrastructure BMPs for Groundwater Recharge, Stormwater Runoff Quality,
and/or Stormwater Runoff Quantity

Minimum
Stormwater .
Runoff Stormwater Separation
Best Management . Groundwater | from
. Quality TSS Runoff
Practice . Recharge Seasonal
Removal Rate | Quantity Hish Water
(percent) g
Table (Feet)
Cistern 0 Yes No --
Dry Well® 0 No Yes 2
(e)
Grass Swale 50 or less No No ?(ﬂ
Green Roof 0 Yes No --
Dependent
yxﬁgﬁﬁged Treatment 50 or 80 No No upon the
device
. ) Yes® 2(b)
Pervious Paving System® | 80 Yes Nz(s“) 2
Small-Scale Bioretention Yes® 20
Basin® 80 or 90 Yes No® @
gx:sz;g(-a?cale Infiltration 80 Yes Yes 5
Small Scale Sand Filter® 80 Yes Yes 2
Vegetative Filter Strip 60-80 No No --

Table 2: Green Infrastructure BMPs for Stormwater Runoff Quantity (or for Groundwater
Recharge and/or Stormwater Runoff Quality with a Variance from N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.3)

Stormwater Minimum
Runo.ff Stormwater Separation
Best Management Practice Quality TSS Runoff Groundwater | from
Removal . Recharge Seasonal
Rate Quantity High Water
(percent) Table (Feet)
. Yes® 20)
Bioretention System 80 or 90 Yes No® G
Infiltration Basin 30 Yes Yes 2
Sand Filter® 80 Yes Yes 2
Standard Constructed Wetland | 90 Yes No 200
Wet Pond? 50-90 Yes No 20)

Table 3: BMPs for Groundwater Recharge, Stormwater Runoff Quality, and/or Stormwater
Runoff Quantity only with a Variance from N.J.A.C. 7:8-5.3

10



Minimum
Stormwater Separation
Runoff Stormwater Groundwate frol:n
Best Management Practice | Quality TSS Runoff
. r Recharge | Seasonal
Removal Rate | Quantity .
(percent) High Water
Table (Feet)
Blue Roof 0 Yes No N/A
Extended Detention Basin 40-60 Yes No 2
Dependent
Manlufa(l;tured Treatment 50 or 80 No No upon the
Device .
device
Sand Filter'® 80 Yes No 2
Subsurface Gravel Wetland | 90 No No 2
Wet Pond 50-90 Yes No 20

Footnotes to Tables 1, 2, and 3:

(a) subject to the applicable contributory drainage area limitation specified at §163-23N(2).

(b) designed to infiltrate into the subsoil.

(c) designed with underdrains, where stormwater percolates into the underdrain through the soils and
is not directed to the underdrain by an outlet control structure.

(d) designed to maintain at least a 10-foot wide area of native vegetation along at least 50 percent of
the shoreline and to include a stormwater runoff retention component designed to capture
stormwater runoff for beneficial reuse, such as irrigation.

(e) designed with a slope of less than two percent.

() designed with a slope of equal to or greater than two percent.

(g) manufactured treatment devices that meet the definition of green infrastructure at §163-22.

(h) manufactured treatment devices that do not meet the definition of green infrastructure at §163-22.

(i) the top elevation of the impermeable layer or liner must maintain this 2-foot minimum separation
to the seasonal high water table.

F. An alternative stormwater management measure, alternative removal rate, and/or alternative
method to calculate the removal rate may be used if the design engineer demonstrates the
capability of the proposed alternative stormwater management measure and/or the validity
of the alternative rate or method to the municipality. A copy of any approved alternative
stormwater management measure, alternative removal rate, and/or alternative method to
calculate the removal rate shall be provided to the NJDEP and the Pinelands Commission in
accordance with §163-25B. Alternative stormwater management measures may be used to
satisfy the requirements at §163-23N only if the measures meet the definition of green
infrastructure at §163-22. Alternative stormwater management measures that function in a
similar manner to a BMP listed at §163-23N(2) are subject to the contributory drainage area
limitation specified at §163-23N(2) for that similarly functioning BMP. Alternative
stormwater management measures approved in accordance with this subsection that do not
function in a similar manner to any BMP listed at §163-23N(2) shall have a contributory
drainage area less than or equal to 2.5 acres, except for alternative stormwater management
measures that function similarly to cisterns, grass swales, green roofs, standard constructed

11



wetlands, vegetative filter strips, and wet ponds, which are not subject to a contributory
drainage area limitation. Alternative measures that function similarly to standard
constructed wetlands or wet ponds shall not be used for compliance with the stormwater
runoff quality standard unless a variance in accordance with §163-30 is granted from §163-
23N.

. Hydraulic Impacts

(1) For all major development, groundwater mounding analysis shall be required for
purposes of assessing the hydraulic impacts of mounding of the water table resulting
from infiltration of stormwater runoff from the maximum storm designed for
infiltration. The mounding analysis shall provide details and supporting documentation
on the methodology used. Groundwater mounds shall not cause stormwater or
groundwater to breakout to the land surface or cause adverse impacts to adjacent water
bodies, wetlands, or subsurface structures, including, but not limited to, basements and
septic systems. Where the mounding analysis identifies adverse impacts, the stormwater
management measure shall be redesigned or relocated, as appropriate.

(2) For all applicable minor development, a design engineer’s certification that each green
infrastructure stormwater management measure will not adversely impact basements or
septic systems of the proposed development shall be required.

. Design standards for stormwater management measures are as follows:

(1) Stormwater management measures shall be designed to take into account the existing
site conditions, including, but not limited to, environmentally critical areas; wetlands;
wetland transition areas; flood-prone areas; slopes; depth to seasonal high water table;
soil type, permeability, and texture; drainage area and drainage patterns; and the
presence of solution-prone carbonate rocks (limestone);

(2) Stormwater management measures designed to infiltrate stormwater shall be designed,
constructed, and maintained to provide a minimum separation of at least two feet
between the elevation of the lowest point of infiltration and the seasonal high water
table;

(3) Stormwater management measures designed to infiltrate stormwater shall be sited in
suitable soils verified by testing to have permeability rates between one and 20 inches
per hour. A factor of safety of two shall be applied to the soil’s permeability rate in
determining the infiltration measure’s design permeability rate. If such soils do not exist
on the parcel proposed for development or if it is demonstrated that it is not practical for
engineering, environmental, or safety reasons to site the stormwater infiltration
measure(s) in such soils, the stormwater infiltration measure(s) may be sited in soils
verified by testing to have permeability rates in excess of 20 inches per hour, provided
that stormwater is routed through a bioretention system prior to infiltration. Said
bioretention system shall be designed, installed, and maintained in accordance with the
New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual;

12



(4) The use of stormwater management measures that are smaller in size and distributed
spatially throughout a parcel, rather than the use of a single, larger stormwater
management measure shall be required,;

(5) Methods of treating stormwater prior to entering any stormwater management measure
shall be incorporated into the design of the stormwater management measure to the
maximum extent practical;

(6) To avoid sedimentation that may result in clogging and reduction of infiltration
capability and to maintain maximum soil infiltration capacity, the construction of
stormwater management measures that rely upon infiltration shall be managed in
accordance with the following standards:

(a) No stormwater management measure shall be placed into operation until its
drainage area has been completely stabilized. Instead, upstream runoff shall be
diverted around the measure and into separate, temporary stormwater management
facilities and sediment basins. Such temporary facilities and basins shall be installed
and utilized for stormwater management and sediment control until stabilization is
achieved in accordance with N.J.A.C. 2:90;

(b) If, for engineering, environmental, or safety reasons, temporary stormwater
management facilities and sediment basins cannot be constructed on the parcel in
accordance with (a) above, the stormwater management measure may be placed into
operation prior to the complete stabilization of its drainage area provided that the
measure’s bottom during this period is constructed at a depth at least two feet hi gher
than its final design elevation. When the drainage area has been completely
stabilized, all accumulated sediment shall be removed from the stormwater
management measure, which shall then be excavated to its final design elevation;
and

(¢) To avoid compacting the soils below a stormwater management measure designed
to infiltrate stormwater, no heavy equipment, such as backhoes, dump trucks, or
bulldozers shall be permitted to operate within the footprint of the stormwater
management measure. All excavation required to construct a stormwater
management measure that relies on infiltration shall be performed by equipment
placed outside the footprint of the stormwater management measure. If this is not
possible, the soils within the excavated area shall be renovated and tilled after
construction is completed. Earthwork associated with stormwater management
measure construction, including excavation, grading, cutting, or filling, shall not be
performed when soil moisture content is above the lower plastic limit;

(7) Dry wells shall be designed to prevent access by amphibian and reptiles;

(8) Stormwater management measures shall be designed to minimize maintenance,
facilitate maintenance and repairs, and ensure proper functioning. Trash racks shall be
installed at the intake to the outlet structure, as appropriate, and shall have parallel bars
with one-inch spacing between the bars to the elevation of the water quality design
storm established at §163-23P(4). For elevations higher than the water quality design

13



storm, the parallel bars at the outlet structure shall be spaced no greater than one-third
the width of the diameter of the orifice or one-third the width of the weir, with a
minimum spacing between bars of one inch and a maximum spacing between bars of
six inches. In addition, the design of trash racks must comply with the requirements of
§163-27C(1);

(9) Stormwater management measures shall be designed, constructed, and installed to be
strong, durable, and corrosion resistant. Measures that are consistent with the relevant
portions of the Residential Site Improvement Standards at N.J.A.C. 5:21-7.3, 7.4, and
7.5 shall be deemed to meet this requirement;

(10) Stormwater management BMPs shall be designed to meet the minimum safety
standards for stormwater management BMPs at §163-27; and

(11) The size of the orifice at the intake to the outlet from the stormwater
management BMP shall be a minimum of two and one-half inches in diameter.

Manufactured treatment devices may be used to meet the requirements of this Article,
provided the pollutant removal rates are verified by the New Jersey Corporation for
Advanced Technology and certified by the NJDEP. Manufactured treatment devices that do
not meet the definition of green infrastructure at §163-22 may be used only under the
circumstances described at §163-23N(4).

- Any application for a new agricultural development that meets the definition of major
development at N.J.A.C. 7:8-1.2 shall be submitted to the Soil Conservation District for
review and approval in accordance with the requirements at §163-23N, O, P, and Q and
any applicable Soil Conservation District guidelines for stormwater runoff quantity and
erosion control. For purposes of this subsection, "agricultural development” means land
uses normally associated with the production of food, fiber, and livestock for sale. Such
uses do not include the development of land for the processing or sale of food and the
manufacture of agriculturally related products.

. If there is more than one drainage area, the groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff
quality, and stormwater runoff quantity standards at §163-230, P, and Q shall be met in
each drainage area, unless the runoff from the drainage areas converge onsite and no
adverse environmental impact would occur as a result of compliance with any one or more
of the individual standards being determined utilizing a weighted average of the results
achieved for that individual standard across the affected drainage areas.

. Any stormwater management measure authorized under the municipal stormwater
management plan or this Article shall be reflected in a deed notice recorded in the Cape
May County Clerk’s Office. A form of deed notice shall be submitted to the municipality
for approval prior to filing. The deed notice shall contain a description of the stormwater
management measure(s) used to meet the green infrastructure, groundwater recharge,
stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff quantity standards at §163-23N, O, P,
and Q and shall identify the location of the stormwater management measure(s) in NAD
1983 State Plane New Jersey FIPS 2900 US Feet or Latitude and Longitude in decimal
degrees. The deed notice shall also reference the maintenance plan required to be recorded

14



upon the deed pursuant to §163-29B(5). Prior to the commencement of construction, proof
that the above required deed notice has been filed shall be submitted to the municipality.
Proof that the required information has been recorded on the deed shall be in the form of
either a copy of the complete recorded document or a receipt from the clerk or other proof
of recordation provided by the recording office. However, if the initial proof provided to the
municipality is not a copy of the complete recorded document, a copy of the complete
recorded document shall be provided to the municipality within 180 calendar days of the
authorization granted by the municipality.

. A stormwater management measure approved under the municipal stormwater management
plan or this Article may be altered or replaced with the approval of the municipality, if the
municipality determines that the proposed alteration or replacement meets the design and
performance standards contained in §163-23N, O, P, and Q and provides the same level of
stormwater management as the previously approved stormwater management measure that
is being altered or replaced. If an alteration or replacement is approved, a revised deed
notice shall be submitted to the municipality for approval and subsequently recorded with
the Cape May County Clerk’s Office and shall contain a description and location of the
stormwater management measure, as well as reference to the maintenance plan, in
accordance with L above. Prior to the commencement of construction, proof that the above
required deed notice has been filed shall be submitted to the municipality in accordance
with L above.

. Green Infrastructure Standards

(1) This subsection specifies the types of green infrastructure BMPs that may be used to
satisfy the groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff
quantity standards of this Article.

(2) To satisfy the groundwater recharge and stormwater runoff quality standards at §163-
230 and P, the design engineer shall utilize BMPs identified in Table 1 at §163-23E
and/or an alternative stormwater management measure approved in accordance with
§163-23F. The following green infrastructure BMPs are subject to the following
maximum contributory drainage area limitations:

Best Management Practice

Maximum Contributory Drainage Area

Dry Well

| acre

Manufactured Treatment Device

2.5 acres

Pervious Pavement System

Area of additional inflow cannot exceed three
times the area occupied by the BMP

Small-scale Bioretention Systems

2.5 acres

Small-scale Infiltration Basin

2.5 acres

Small-scale Sand Filter

2.5 acres

(3) To satisfy the stormwater runoff quantity standards at §163-23Q, the design engineer shall
utilize BMPs identified in Table 1 or 2 at §163-23E and/or an alternative stormwater

management measure approved in accordance with §163-23F.

15




(4) If a variance in accordance with §163-30 is granted from the requirements of this
subsection, then BMPs from Table 1, 2, or 3 at §163-23E and/or an alternative stormwater
management measure approved in accordance with §163-23F may be used to meet the

groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality, and stormwater runoff quantity standards
at §163-230, P, and Q.

(5} For separate or combined storm sewer improvement projects, such as sewer separation,
undertaken by a government agency or public utility (for example, a sewerage company),
the requirements of this subsection shall only apply to areas owned in fee simple by the
government agency or utility, and areas within a right-of-way or easement held or
controlled by the government agency or utility; the entity shall not be required to obtain
additional property or property rights to fully satisfy the requirements of this subsection.
Regardless of the amount of area of a separate or combined storm sewer improvement
project subject to the green infrastructure requirements of this subsection, each project shall
fully comply with the applicable groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff quality control,
and stormwater runoff quantity standards at §163-230, P, and Q.

O. Groundwater Recharge Standards

(1) This subsection contains the minimum design and performance standards for groundwater
recharge as follows:

(2) For all major development, the total runoff volume generated from the net increase in
impervious surfaces by a 10-year, 24-hour storm shall be retained and infiltrated onsite.

(3) For minor development that involves the construction of four or fewer dwelling units, the
runoff generated from the total roof area of the dwelling(s) by a 10-year, 24-hour storm
shall be retained and infiltrated through installation of one or more green infrastructure
stormwater management measures designed in accordance with the New Jersey Stormwater
BMP Manual. Appropriate green infrastructure stormwater management measures include,
but are not limited to dry wells, pervious pavement systems, and small scale bioretention
systems, including rain gardens.

(4) For minor development that involves any nonresidential use and will result in an increase of
greater than 1,000 square feet of regulated motor vehicle surfaces, the water quality design
storm volume generated from these surfaces shall be recharged onsite.

(5) Stormwater from areas of high pollutant loading and/or industrial stormwater exposed to
source material shall only be recharged in accordance with §163-23P(8).

P. Stormwater Runoff Quality Standards

(1) This subsection contains the minimum design and performance standards to control
stormwater runoff quality impacts of:

(a) Major development,

16



(b) Minor development that involves any nonresidential use and will result in an increase of
greater than 1,000 square feet of regulated motor vehicle surfaces; and

(¢) Any development involving the grading, clearing, or disturbance of an area in excess of
5,000 square feet within any five-year period.

(2) Stormwater management measures shall be designed to reduce the post-construction load of
total suspended solids (TSS) in stormwater runoff generated from the water quality desi gn
storm established at §163-23P(4) as follows:

(a) Eighty percent TSS removal of the anticipated load, expressed as an annual average
shall be achieved for the stormwater runoff from the net increase of motor vehicle
surface.

(b) If the surface is considered regulated motor vehicle surface because the water quality
treatment for an area of motor vehicle surface that is currently receiving water quality
treatment either by vegetation or soil, by an existing stormwater management measure,
or by treatment at a wastewater treatment plant is to be modified or removed, the project

shall maintain or increase the existing TSS removal of the anticipated load expressed as
an annual average.

(3) The requirement to reduce TSS does not apply to any stormwater runoffin a discharge
regulated under a numeric effluent limitation for TSS imposed under the New Jersey
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NJPDES) rules, N.J.A.C. 7:14A, orin a discharge
specifically exempt under a NJPDES permit from this requirement. Every major
development, including any that discharge into a combined sewer system, shall comply
with (2) above, unless the major development is itself subject to a NJPDES permit with a
numeric effluent limitation for TSS or the NJPDES permit to which the major development
is subject exempts the development from a numeric effluent limitation for TSS.

(4) The water quality design storm is 1.25 inches of rainfall in two hours. Water quality
calculations shall take into account the distribution of rain from the water quality design
storm, as reflected in Table 4, below. The calculation of the volume of runoff may take into
account the implementation of stormwater management measures.

17



Table 4: Water Quality Design Storm Distribution

Time Cu'mulative Time Cu.mulative Time Cu.mulative
(Minutes) Rainfall (Minutes) Rainfall (Minutes) Rainfall
(Inches) (Inches) (Inches)
1 0.00166 41 0.1728 81 1.0906
2 0.00332 42 0.1796 82 1.0972
3 0.00498 43 0.1864 83 1.1038
4 0.00664 44 0.1932 84 1.1104
5 0.0083 45 0.2 85 1.117
6 0.00996 46 0.2117 86 1.1236
7 0.01162 47 0.2233 87 1.1302
8 0.01328 48 0.235 88 1.1368
9 0.01494 49 0.2466 89 1.1434
10 0.0166 50 0.2583 90 I.15
11 0.01828 51 0.2783 91 1.155
12 0.01996 52 0.2983 92 1.16
13 0.02164 53 0.3183 93 1.165
14 0.02332 54 0.3383 94 1.17
15 0.025 55 0.3583 05 1.175
16 0.03 56 0.4116 96 1.18
17 0.035 57 0.465 97 1.185
18 0.04 58 0.5183 98 1.19
19 0.045 59 0.5717 99 1.195
20 0.05 60 0.625 100 1.2
21 0.055 61 0.6783 101 1.205
22 0.06 62 0.7317 102 1.21
23 0.065 63 0.785 103 1.215
24 0.07 64 0.8384 104 1.22
25 0.075 65 0.8917 105 1.225
26 0.08 66 0.9117 106 1.2267
27 0.085 67 0.9317 107 1.2284
28 0.09 68 0.9517 108 1.23
29 0.095 69 0.9717 109 1.2317
30 0.1 70 0.9917 110 1.2334
31 0.1066 71 1.0034 111 1.2351
32 0.1132 72 1.015 112 1.2367
33 0.1198 73 1.0267 113 1.2384
34 0.1264 74 1.0383 114 1.24
35 0.133 75 1.05 115 1.2417
36 0.1396 76 1.0568 116 1.2434
37 0.1462 77 1.0636 117 1.245
38 0.1528 78 1.0704 118 1.2467
39 0.1594 79 1.0772 119 1.2483
40 0.166 80 1.084 120 1.25

18




(5) If more than one BMP in series is necessary to achieve the required 80 percent TSS
reduction for a site, the applicant shall utilize the following formula to calculate TSS
reduction:

R=A+B-(AxB)/100
Where,

R = total TSS Percent Load Removal from application of both BMPs, and
A = the TSS Percent Removal Rate applicable to the first BMP
B = the TSS Percent Removal Rate applicable to the second BMP.

(6) Stormwater management measures shall also be designed to reduce, to the maximum extent
feasible, the post-construction nutrient load of the anticipated load from the developed site
in stormwater runoff generated from the water quality design storm established at §163-
23P(4). In achieving reduction of nutrients to the maximum extent feasible, the desi gn of
the site shall include green infrastructure BMPs that optimize nutrient removal while still
achieving the performance standards in §163-230, P, and Q.

(7) For all major development, stormwater management measures shall be designed to achieve
a minimum of 65 percent reduction of the post-construction total nitrogen load from the
developed site, including those permanent lawn or turf areas that are specifically intended
for active human use as described at N.J.A.C. 7.50-6.24(c)3, in stormwater runoff generated
from the water quality design storm established at §163-23P(4). In achieving a minimum 65
percent reduction of total nitrogen, the design of the site shall include green infrastructure
in accordance with the New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual and shall optimize nutrient
removal. The minimum 65 percent total nitrogen reduction may be achieved by using a
singular stormwater management measure or multiple stormwater management measures in
series.

(8) In high pollutant loading areas (HPLAs) and/or areas where stormwater runoff is exposed
to source material, as defined in §163-22, the following additional water quality standards
shall apply:

(a) The areal extent and amount of precipitation falling directly on or flowing over HPLAs
and/or areas where stormwater is exposed to source material shall be minimized through
the use of roof covers, canopies, curbing or other physical means to the maximum
extent practical in order to minimize the quantity of stormwater generated from HPLA
areas and areas where stormwater runoff is exposed to source material;

(b) The stormwater runoff originating from HPLAs and/or areas where stormwater runoff is
exposed to source material shall be segregated and prohibited from co-mingling with
stormwater runoff originating from the remainder of the parcel unless it is first routed
through one or more stormwater management measures required at (c) below;

(¢) The stormwater runoff from HPLAs and/or areas where stormwater runoff is exposed to
source material shall incorporate stormwater management measures designed to reduce
the post-construction load of TSS by at least 90 percent in stormwater runoff generated

19



from the water quality design storm established at §163-23P(4) using one or more of the
measures identified at [1] or [2] below. In meeting this requirement, the minimum 90
percent removal of total suspended solids may be achieved by utilizing multiple
stormwater management measures in series:

[1] Any measure designed in accordance with the New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual
to remove total suspended solids. Any such measure must be constructed to ensure
that the lowest point of infiltration within the measure maintains a minimum of two
feet of vertical separation from the seasonal high-water table; and

[2] Other measures certified by the NJDEP, including a Media Filtration System
manufactured treatment device with a minimum 80 percent removal of total
suspended solids as verified by the New Jersey Corporation for Advanced
Technology; and

(d) If the potential for contamination of stormwater runoff by petroleum products exists
onsite, prior to being conveyed to the stormwater management measure required at (c)
above, the stormwater runoff from the HPLAs and areas where stormwater runoff is
exposed to source material shall be conveyed through an oil/grease separator or other
equivalent manufactured filtering device providing for the removal of petroleum
hydrocarbons. The applicant shall provide the review agency with sufficient data to
demonstrate acceptable performance of the device.

(9) The Flood Hazard Area Control Act Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:13-4.1(c)1 establish 300-foot
riparian zones along Category One waters, as designated in the Surface Water Quality
Standards at N.J.A.C. 7:9B, and certain upstream tributarics to Category One waters. A
person shall not undertake a major development that is located within or discharges into a

300-foot riparian zone without prior authorization from the Department under N.J.A.C.
7:13.

(10)  Pursuant to the Flood Hazard Area Control Act Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:13-1 1.2()3.1, runoff
from the water quality design storm that is discharged within a 300-foot riparian zone shall
be treated in accordance with this subsection to reduce the post-construction load of total
suspended solids by 95 percent of the anticipated load from the developed site, expressed as
an annual average.

Q. Stormwater Runoff Quantity Standards

(1) This subsection contains the minimum design and performance standards to contro!
stormwater runoff quantity impacts related to applicable major and minor development.

(2) In order to control stormwater runoff quantity impacts, the design engineer shall, using the
assumptions and factors for stormwater runoff calculations at §163-24, complete one of the
following:

(a) Demonstrate through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that for stormwater leaving the
site, post-construction runoff hydrographs for the 2-, 10-, and 100-year storm events do

20



not exceed, at any point in time, the pre-construction runoff hydrographs for the same
storm events;

(b) Demonstrate through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that there is no increase, as
compared to the pre-construction condition, in the peak runoff rates of stormwater
leaving the site for the 2-, 10- and 100-year storm events and that the increased volume
or change in timing of stormwater runoff will not increase flood damage at or
downstream of the site. This analysis shall include the analysis of impacts of existing
land uses and projected land uses assuming full development under existing zoning and
land use ordinances in the drainage area,

() Design stormwater management measures so that the post-construction peak runoff
rates for the 2-, 10- and 100-year storm events are 50, 75 and 80 percent, respectively,
of the pre-construction peak runoff rates. The percentages apply only to the post-
construction stormwater runoff that is attributable to the portion of the site on which the
proposed development or project is to be constructed; or

(d) In tidal floed hazard areas, stormwater runoff quantity analysis in accordance with (a),
(b), and (¢) above is required unless the design engineer demonstrates through
hydrologic and hydraulic analysis that the increased volume, change in timing, or
increased rate of the stormwater runoff, or any combination of the three will not result
in additional flood damage below the point of discharge of the major development. No
analysis is required if the stormwater is discharged directly into any ocean, bay, inlet, or
the reach of any watercourse between its confluence with an ocean, bay, or inlet and
downstream of the first water control structure.

(3) The stormwater runoff quantity standards shall be applied at the site’s boundary to each
abutting lot, roadway, watercourse, or receiving storm sewer system.

(4) There shall be no direct discharge of stormwater runoff from any point or nonpoint source
to any wetland, wetlands transition area, or surface waterbody. In addition, stormwater
runoff shall not be directed in such a way as to increase the volume and rate of discharge
into any wetlands, wetlands transition area, or surface water body from that which existed
prior to development of the parcel.

(5) To the maximum extent practical, there shall be no direct discharge of stormwater runoff
onto farm fields to protect farm crops from damage due to flooding, erosion, and long-term
saturation of cultivated crops and cropland.

R. As-built requirements for major development are as follows:

(1) After all construction activities have been completed on the parcel and finished grade has
been established in each stormwater management measure designed to infiltrate
stormwater, replicate post-development permeability tests shall be conducted to determine
if as-built soil permeability rates are consistent with design permeability rates. The results
of such tests shall be submitted to the municipal engineer or other appropriate reviewing
engineer. If the results of the post-development permeability tests fail to achieve the
minimum required design permeability rate, utilizing a factor of safety of two, the

21



stormwater management measure shall be renovated and re-tested until the required
permeability rates are achieved; and

(2) After all construction activities and required testing have been completed on the parcel, as-
built plans, including as-built elevations of all stormwater management measures shall be
submitted to the municipal engineer or other appropriate reviewing engineer to serve as a
document of record. Based upon that engineer's review of the as-built plans, all corrections
or remedial actions deemed necessary due to the failure to comply with design standards
and/or for any reason concerning public health or safety, shall be completed by the
applicant. In lieu of review by the municipal engineer, the municipality may engage a
licensed professional engineer to review the as-built plans and charge the applicant for all
costs associated with such review.

§163-24. Calculation of Stormwater Runoff and Groundwater Recharge

A. Stormwater runoff shall be calculated by the design engineer using the USDA Natural
Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) methodology, including the NRCS Runoff
Equation and Dimensionless Unit Hydrograph, as described in Chapters 7, 9, 10, 15 and 16
Part 630, Hydrology National Engineering Handbook, incorporated herein by reference as
amended and supplemented, except that the Rational Method for peak flow and the
Modified Rational Method for hydrograph computations shall not be used. This
methodology is additionally described in Technical Release 55 - Urban Hydrology for
Small Watersheds (TR-55), dated June 1986, incorporated herein by reference as amended
and supplemented. Information regarding the methodology is available from the Natural
Resources Conservation Service website at:
hitps://www.nrcs.usda.gov/Internet/FSE_ DOCUMENTS/stelprdb1044171.pdf or at United
States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service, 220 Davison
Avenue, Somerset, New Jersey 08873,

B. In calculating stormwater runoff using the NRCS methodology, the appropriate 24-hour
rainfall depths as developed for the parcel by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration, https://hdsc.nws.noaa.gov/hdsc/pfds/pfds map cont.html?bkmrk -1, shall
be utilized.

C. For the purpose of calculating runoff coefficients and groundwater recharge, there is a
presumption that the pre-construction condition of a site or portion thereof is a wooded land
use with good hydrologic condition. A runoff coefficient or a groundwater recharge land
cover for an existing condition may be used on all or a portion of the site if the design
engineer verifies that the hydrologic condition has existed on the site or portion of the site
for at least five years without interruption prior to the time of application. If more than one
land cover has existed on the site during the five years immediately prior to the time of
application, the land cover with the lowest runoff potential shall be used for the
computations. In addition, there is the presumption that the site is in good hydrologic
condition (if the land use type is pasture, lawn, or park), with good cover (if the land use
type is woods), or with good hydrologic condition and conservation treatment (if the land
use type is cultivation).

22



» In computing pre-construction stormwater runoff, the design engineer shall account for all
significant land features and structures, such as ponds, wetlands, depressions, hedgerows, or
culverts, that may reduce pre-construction stormwater runoff rates and volumes.

- In computing stormwater runoff from all design storms, the design engineer shall consider
the relative stormwater runoff rates and/or volumes of pervious and impervious surfaces
separately to accurately compute the rates and volume of stormwater runoff from the site.
To calculate runoff from unconnected impervious cover, urban impervious area
modifications as described in the NRCS Technical Release 55 — Urban Hydrology for
Small Watersheds or other methods may be employed.

. If the invert of the outlet structure of a stormwater management measure is below the flood
hazard design flood elevation as defined at N.J.A.C. 7:13, the design engineer shall take
into account the effects of tailwater in the design of structural stormwater management
measures.

- Groundwater recharge may be calculated in accordance with the New Jersey Geological
Survey Report GSR-32, A Method for Evaluating Groundwater-Recharge Areas in New
Jersey, incorporated herein by reference as amended and supplemented. Information
regarding the methodology is available from the New Jersey Stormwater Best Management
Practices Manual; at the New Jersey Geological Survey website at:
https://www.nj.gov/dep/njgs/pricelst/gsreport/gsr32.pdf or at New Jersey Geological and
Water Survey, 29 Arctic Parkway, PO Box 420 Mail Code 29-01, Trenton, New Jersey
08625-0420.

§163-25. Sources for Technical Guidance

A. Technical guidance for stormwater management measures can be found in the documents

listed below, which are available to download from the NJDEP’s website at:
http://www.nj.gov/dep/stormwater/bmp manual2.htm.

(1) Guidelines for stormwater management measures are contained in the New Jersey
Stormwater BMP Manual, as amended and supplemented. Information is provided on
stormwater management measures such as, but not limited to, those listed in Tables 1,
2, and 3 of §163-23E. The New Jersey Stormwater BMP Manual may be utilized as a
guide in determining the extent to which stormwater management activities and
measures meet the standards of this Article.

(2) Additional maintenance guidance is available on the NJDEP’s website at:
https://www.njstormwater.org/maintenance guidance.htm.
(1) Submissions required for review by the NJDEP should be mailed to:

The Division of Water Quality, New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection,
Mail Code 401-02B, PO Box 420, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0420.

23



(2) Submissions required for review by the Pinelands Commission should be emailed to
appinfo@pinelands.nj.gov.

§163-26. Solids and Floatable Materials Control Standards

A. Site design features identified under §163-23E, or alternative designs in accordance with
§163-23F, to prevent discharge of trash and debris from drainage systems shall comply
with the following standard to control passage of solid and floatable materials through
storm drain inlets. For purposes of this paragraph, “solid and floatable materials” means
sediment, debris, trash, and other floating, suspended, or settleable solids. For exemptions
to this standard see (2) below.

(1) Design engineers shall use one of the following grates whenever they use a grate in
pavement or another ground surface to collect stormwater from that surface into a storm
drain or surface water body under that grate:

(a) The New Jersey Department of Transportation (NJDOT) bicycle safe grate, which is
described in Chapter 2.4 of the NJDOT Bicycle Compatible Roadways and
Bikeways Planning and Design Guidelines; or

(b) A different grate, if each individual clear space in that grate has an area of no more
than seven (7.0) square inches, or is no greater than 0.5 inches across the smallest
dimension.

Examples of grates subject to this standard include grates in grate inlets, the grate
portion (non-curb-opening portion) of combination inlets, grates on storm sewer
manbholes, ditch grates, trench grates, and grates of spacer bars in slotted drains.
Examples of ground surfaces include surfaces of roads (including bridges),
driveways, parking areas, bikeways, plazas, sidewalks, lawns, fields, open channels,
and stormwater system floors used to collect stormwater from the surface into a
storm drain or surface water body.

(¢) For curb-opening inlets, including curb-opening inlets in combination inlets, the
clear space in that curb opening, or each individual clear space if the curb opening
has two or more clear spaces, shall have an area of no more than seven (7.0) square
inches, or be no greater than two (2.0) inches across the smallest dimension.

(2) The standard in (1) above does not apply:

(a) Where each individual clear space in the curb opening in existing curb-opening inlet
does not have an area of more than nine (9.0) square inches;

(b) Where the municipality agrees that the standards would cause inadequate hydraulic
performance that could not practicably be overcome by using additional or larger
storm drain inlets;

(¢) Where flows from the water quality design storm established at §163-23P(4) are
conveyed through any device (e.g., end of pipe netting facility, manufactured

24



treatment device, or a catch basin hood) that is designed, at a minimum, to prevent
delivery of all solid and floatable materials that could not pass through one of the
following:

[1] A rectangular space four and five-eighths (4.625) inches long and one and one-
half (1.5) inches wide (this option does not apply for outfall netting facilities); or

[2] A bar screen having a bar spacing of 0.5 inches.

Note that these exemptions do not authorize any infringement of requirements in
the Residential Site Improvement Standards for bicycle safe grates in new
residential development (N.J.A.C. 5:21-4.18(b)2 and 7.4(b)1).

(d) Where flows are conveyed through a trash rack that has parallel bars with one-inch
(1 inch) spacing between the bars, to the elevation of the Water Quality Design
Storm established at §163-23P(4); or

(e) Where the NJDEP determines, pursuant to the New Jersey Register of Historic
Places Rules at N.J.A.C. 7:4-7.2(c), that action to meet this standard is an
undertaking that constitutes an encroachment or will damage or destroy the New
Jersey Register listed historic property.

§163-27. Safety Standards for Stormwater Management Basins

A. This section sets forth requirements to protect public safety through the proper design and
operation of stormwater management BMPs, This section applies to any new stormwater
management BMP.

B. The provisions of this section are not intended to preempt more stringent municipal or
county safety requirements for new or existing stormwater management BMPs. Municipal
and county stormwater management plans and ordinances may, pursuant to their authority,
require existing stormwater management BMPs to be retrofitted to meet one or more of the
safety standards in C(1), (2) or (3) below for trash racks, overflow grates, and escape
provisions at outlet structures.

C. Requirements for Trash Racks, Overflow Grates and Escape Provisions
(1) A trash rack is a device designed to catch trash and debris and prevent the clogging of
outlet structures. Trash racks shall be installed at the intake to the outlet from the
Stormwater management BMP to ensure proper functioning of the BMP outlets in

accordance with the following:

(@) The trash rack shall have parallel bars, with no greater than six-inch spacing
between the bars;

(b) The trash rack shall be designed so as not to adversely affect the hydraulic
performance of the outlet pipe or structure;

25



(c) The average velocity of flow through a clean trash rack is not to exceed 2.5 feet per
second under the full range of stage and discharge. Velocity is to be computed on
the basis of the net area of opening through the rack; and

(d) The trash rack shall be constructed of rigid, durable, and corrosion resistant material
and designed to withstand a perpendicular live loading of 300 pounds per square
foot.

(2) An overtlow grate is designed to prevent obstruction of the overflow structure. If an
outlet structure has an overflow grate, the grate shall comply with the following
requirements:

(a) The overflow grate shall be secured to the outlet structure but removable for
emergencies and maintenance.

(b) The overflow grate spacing shall be no greater than two inches across the smallest
dimenston

(¢) The overflow grate shall be constructed of rigid, durable, and corrosion resistant
material, and shall be designed to withstand a perpendicular live loading of 300
pounds per square foot.

(3) Stormwater management BMPs shall include escape provisions as follows:

(a) If a stormwater management BMP has an outlet structure, escape provisions shall be
incorporated in or on the structure. Escape provisions include the installation of
permanent ladders, steps, rungs, or other features that provide easily accessible
means of egress from stormwater management BMPs. With the prior approval of
the municipality pursuant to D below, a free-standing outlet structure may be
exempted from this requirement;

(b) Safety ledges shall be constructed on the slapes of all new stormwater management
BMPs having a permanent pool of water deeper than two and one-half feet. Safety
ledges shall be comprised of two steps. Each step shall be four to six feet in width.
One step shall be located approximately two and one-half feet below the permanent
water surface, and the second step shall be located one to one and one-half feet
above the permanent water surface. See E below for an illustration of safety ledges
in a stormwater management BMP; and

(¢) In new stormwater management BMPs, the maximum interior slope for an earthen
dam, embankment, or berm shall not be steeper than three horizontal to one vertical.

D. Variance or Exemption from Safety Standard
A variance or exemption from the safety standards for stormwater management BMPs may

be granted only upon a written finding by the municipality that the variance or exemption
will not constitute a threat to public safety.

26



E. Safety Ledge Illustration

Figure 1. Elevation View — Basin Safety Ledge Configuration

Top of Ledge,
30inches
Below

Water
Surface

NOTE:

Safety Ledge, 4 to 6 feet in Width,

Permanent
Water Level

N

Gently Sloped for Drainage—\

Top of Ledge,
12 to 18 inches —{_

Above Water Surface

Safety Ledge,

4 to 6 feet in Width, \

Gently Sloped for Drainage

—5Stable Slope

Only For Basins with Permanent Pool of Water

<>

Noft to Scale

§163-28. Requirements for a Site Development Stormwater Plan

A, Submission of Site Development Stormwater Plan.

(1) Any application for major development approval shall include a Site Development
Stormwater Plan containing all information required in §163-28C.

(2) Any application for minor development approval that is subject to this Article shall
include a Site Development Stormwater Plan containing all information required in

§163-28D.,

(3) The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall demonstrate that the proposed
development meets the standards of this Article.

(4) The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain comprehensive hydrologic and
hydraulic design calculations for the pre-development and post-development conditions
for the design storms specified in §163-23P(4). The standards for groundwater recharge
and stormwater runoff rate, volume and quality required by §163-230, P, and Q and
shall be met using the methods, calculations and assumptions provided in §163-24.

(5) The application submission requirements of (1) and (2) above shall be in addition to all
other applicable application submission requirements of the municipality’s land
development regulations.

27



(6) The applicant shall submit 3 copies of the Site Development Stormwater Plan. All
required engineering plans shall be in CAD Format 15 or higher, registered and rectified
to NAD 1983 State Plane New Jersey FIPS 2900 US Feet or Shape Format NAD 1983
State Plane New Jersey FIPS 2900 US Feet. All other required documents shall be
submitted in both paper and commonly used electronic file formats such as .pdf, word
processing, database or spreadsheet files.

. Site Development Stormwater Plan Approval.

The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall be reviewed as a part of the development
review process by the municipal board or official from whom municipal approval is sought.
That municipal board or official shall consult the engineer retained by the Planning and/or
Zoning Board (as appropriate) to determine if all the checklist requirements have been
satisfied and to determine if the project meets the standards set forth in this Article.

. Checklist Requirements for major development.

Any application for major development approval shall include a Site Development
Stormwater Plan containing, at minimum, the following information.

(1) Topographic Base Map.

The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain a topographic base map of the site
that extends a minimum of three hundred (300) feet beyond the limits of the proposed
development, at a scale of one (1) inch = two hundred (200} feet or greater, showing
one (1) foot contour intervals. The map shall indicate the following: existing surface
water drainage, shorelines, steep slopes, soils, highly erodible soils, perennial or
intermittent streams that drain into or upstream of any Category One or Pinelands
Waters, wetlands and floodplains along with any required wetlands transition areas,
marshlands and other wetlands, pervious or vegetative surfaces, existing surface and
subsurface human-made structures, roads, bearing and distances of property lines, and
significant natural and manmade features not otherwise shown. Dennis Township or the
Pinelands Commission may require upstream tributary drainage system information as
necessary.

(2) Environmental Site Analysis.

The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain a written description along with
the drawings of the natural and human-made features of the site and its environs. This
description shall include:

(a) A discussion of environmentally critical areas, soil conditions, slopes, wetlands,
waterways and vegetation on the site. Particular attention shall be given to unique,
unusual or environmentally sensitive features and to those features that provide
particular opportunities for or constraints on development; and

(b} Detailed soil and other environmental conditions on the portion of the site proposed
for installation of any stormwater management measures, including, at a minimum:

28



[1] A soils report based on onsite soil tests;
[2] Location and spot elevations in plan view of all test pits and permeability tests;
[3] Permeability test data and calculations;

[4] Any other required soil or hydrogeologic data (e.g., mounding analyses results)
correlated with location and elevation of each test site;

[S] A cross-section of all proposed stormwater management measures with side-by-
side depiction of soil profile drawn to scale and seasonal high water table
elevation identified; and

[6] Any other information necessary to demonstrate the suitability of the specific
proposed stormwater management measures relative to the environmental
conditions on the portion(s) of the site proposed for implementation of those
measures.

(3) Project description and site plan(s).

The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain a map (or maps), at the same scale
as the topographical base map, indicating the location of existing and proposed
buildings, roads, parking areas, utilities, structural facilities for stormwater management
and sediment control, and other permanent structures. The map(s) shall also clearly
show areas where alterations will occur in the natural terrain and cover, including lawns
and other landscaping, and seasonal high groundwater elevations. A written description
of the site plan and justification for proposed changes in natural conditions shall also be
provided.

{4) Land Use Planning and Source Control Plan.

The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain a Land Use Planning and Source
Control Plan demonstrating compliance with the erosion control, groundwater recharge,
stormwater runoff quantity control and stormwater quality treatment required by this
Article. This shall include, but is not limited to:

(a) Information demonstrating that the proposed stormwater management measures are
able to achieve a minimum 65 percent reduction of the post-construction total
nitrogen load, in accordance with §163-23P(7).

(b) Where any stormwater generated from high pollutant loading areas or where
stormwater will be exposed to source material, information demonstrating that the

proposed stormwater management measures are consistent with §163-23P(8).

(5) Stormwater Management Facilities Map.

29



The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain a Stormwater Management
Facilities Map, at the same scale as the topographic base map, depicting the following
information:

(a) The total area to be disturbed, paved and/or built upon, proposed surface contours,
land area to be occupied by the stormwater management facilities and the type of
vegetation thereon, and details of the proposed plan to manage and recharge
stormwater; and

(b) Details of all stormwater management facility designs, during and after
construction, including discharge provisions, discharge capacity for each outlet at
different levels of detention (if applicable) and emergency spillway provisions with
maximum discharge capacity of each spillway.

(6) Groundwater Mounding Analysis.

The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain a groundwater mounding analysis
in accordance with §163-23G(1).

(7) Inspection, Maintenance and Repair Plan.
The Site Development Stormwater Plan shall contain an Inspection, Maintenance and
Repair Plan containing information meeting the requirements of §163-29B of this
Article,

. Checklist Requirements for minor development.

Any application for minor development approval that is subject to this Article shall include

a Site Development Stormwater Plan, certified by a design engineer, containing, at

minimum, the following information:

(1) All existing and proposed development, including limits of clearing and land
disturbance.

(2) All existing and proposed lot lines.
(3) All wetlands and required wetland transition areas.
(4) The type and location of each green infrastructure stormwater management measure.

(5) A cross sectional drawing of each stormwater management measure showing the
associated:

(a) soil profile;
(b) soil permeability test elevation;

(¢) soil permeability rate; and

30



(d) the elevation of, and vertical separation to, the seasonal high water table.

(6) A design engineer’s certification that each green infrastructure stormwater management
measure will not adversely impact basements or septic systems of the proposed
development, in accordance with §163-23G(2).

(7) A Maintenance Plan containing information meeting the requirements of §163-29B of
this Article.

E. Exception from submission requirements.

With the exception of C(7) and D(7) above, the municipality may modify or waive any
required element of the Site Development Stormwater Plan, provided that sufficient
information can be provided to demonstrate compliance with the standards of this Article.
However, application information required in accordance with the Pinelands CMP
(N.J.A.C. 7:50-4.2(b}) shall be submitted to the Pinelands Commission, unless the
Executive Director of the Pinelands Commission waives or modifies the application
requirements.

§163-29. Maintenance and Repair

A. All development regulated under this Article shall incorporate a maintenance plan, prepared
by the design engineer, consistent with B below. Maintenance and repair shall be
implemented in accordance with maintenance plan and C below.

B. The maintenance plan shall include the following:

(1) Specific preventative maintenance tasks and schedules; cost estimates, including
estimated cost of sediment, debris, or trash removal; and the name, address, and
telephone number of the person or persons responsible for preventative and corrective
maintenance (including replacement). The plan shall contain information on BMP
location, design, ownership, maintenance tasks and frequencies, and other details as
specified in Chapter 8 of the NJ BMP Manual, as well as the tasks specific to the type
of BMP, as described in the applicable chapter containing design specifics.

(2) Responsibility for maintenance of stormwater management measures approved as part
of an application for major development shall not be assigned or transferred to the
owner or tenant of an individual property, unless such owner or tenant owns or leases
the entire site subject to the major development approval. The individual property
owner may be assigned incidental tasks, such as weeding of a green infrastructure BMP,
provided the individual agrees to assume these tasks; however, the individual cannot be
legally responsible for all the maintenance required.

(3) Responsibility for maintenance of stormwater management measures approved as part

of an application for minor development may be assigned or transferred to the owner or
tenant of the parcel.

31



(4) If the maintenance plan identifies a person other than the property owner (for example,
a developer, a public agency or homeowners’ association) as having the responsibility
for maintenance, the plan shall include documentation of such person's or entity’s
agreement to assume this responsibility, or of the owner's obligation to dedicate a
stormwater management facility to such person under an applicable ordinance or
regulation.

(5) If the person responsible for maintenance identified under (1) above is not a public
agency, the maintenance plan and any future revisions based on §163-29C(2)(b) shall
be recorded upon the deed of record for each property on which the maintenance
described in the maintenance plan must be undertaken.

(6) For all major development, the following additional standards apply:

(a) The maintenance plan shall include accurate and comprehensive drawings of all
stormwater management measures on a parcel, including the specific latitude and
longitude and block/lot number of each stormwater management measure.
Maintenance plans shall specify that an inspection, maintenance, and repair report
will be updated and submitted annually to the municipality;

(b) Stormwater management measure easements shall be provided by the property
owner as necessary for facility inspections and maintenance and preservation of
stormwater runoff conveyance, infiltration, and detention areas and facilities. The
purpose of the easement shall be specified in the maintenance agreement; and

(©) An adequate means of ensuring permanent financing of the inspection, maintenance
repair, and replacement plan shall be implemented and shall be detailed in the
maintenance plan. Financing methods shall include, but not be limited to:

a2

[1] The assumption of the inspection and maintenance program by a municipality,
county, public utility, or homeowners association;

[2] The required payment of fees to 2 municipal stormwater fund in an amount
equivalent to the cost of both ongoing maintenance activities and necessary
structural replacements.

(7) For all minor development, maintenance plans shall be required for all stormwater
management measures installed in accordance with this Article and shall include, at a
minimum, the following information:

(a) A copy of the certified plan required pursuant to §163-28D;

(b) A description of the required maintenance activities for each stormwater
management measure; and

(¢) The frequency of each required maintenance activity.

C. General Maintenance and Repair

32



(1) Preventative and corrective maintenance shall be performed to maintain the function of
the stormwater management measure, including, but not limited to, repairs or
replacement to the structure; removal of sediment, debris, or trash; restoration of eroded
areas; snow and ice removal; fence repair or replacement; restoration of vegetation; and
repair or replacement of non-vegetated linings.

(2) The person responsible for maintenance identified under §163-29B(2) shall perform all
of the following requirements:

(a) maintain a detailed log of all preventative and corrective maintenance for the
structural stormwater management measures incorporated into the design of the

development, including a record of all inspections and copies of all maintenance-
related work orders;

(b) evaluate the effectiveness of the maintenance plan at least once per year and adjust
the plan and the deed as needed; and

(¢) retain and make available, upon request by any public entity with administrative,
health, environmental, or safety authority over the site, the maintenance plan and the
documentation required by (a) and (b) above.

(3) The requirements of B(2), (3), and (4) above do not apply to stormwater management
facilities that are dedicated to and accepted by the municipality or another governmental
agency, subject to all applicable municipal stormwater general permit conditions, as
issued by the Department.

{(4) In the event that the stormwater management facility becomes a danger to public safety
or public health, or if it is in need of maintenance or repair, the municipality shall so
notify the responsible person in writing. Upon receipt of that notice, the responsible
person shall have fourteen (14) days to effect maintenance and repair of the facility in a
manner that is approved by the municipal engineer or his designee. The municipality, in
its discretion, may extend the time allowed for effecting maintenance and repair for
good cause. If the responsible person fails or refuses to perform such maintenance and
repair, the municipality or County may immediately proceed to do so and shall bill the
cost thereof to the responsible person. Nonpayment of such bill may result in a lien on
the property.

D. Nothing in this section shall preclude the municipality in which the major development is
located from requiring the posting of a performance or maintenance guarantee in

accordance with N.J.S.A. 40:55D-53.

§163-30. Variances

A. The exemptions, exceptions, applicability standards, and waivers of strict compliance
contained in the NJDEP Stormwater Management Regulations at N.J.A.C. 7:8-1.1 et seq.
shall not apply within the Pinelands Area except in accordance with this Section.

33



B. The municipal review agency may grant a variance from the design and performance
standards for stormwater management measures set forth in its municipal stormwater
management plan and this Article, provided that:

(1) No variances shall be granted from §163-23Q(4), which prohibits the direct discharge
of stormwater runoff to any wetlands, wetlands transition area, or surface waterbody
and the direction of stormwater runoff in such a way as to increase in volume and rate
of discharge into any wetlands, wetlands transition area, or surface water body from that
which existed prior to development of the parcel;

(2) The municipal stormwater plan includes a mitigation plan in accordance with N.J.A.C.
7:8-4.2(c)1t and N.J.A.C. 7:50-3.39(a)2viii;

(3) The applicant demonstrates that it is technically impracticable to meet any one or more
of the design and performance standards on-site. For the purposes of this analysis,
technical impracticability exists only when the design and performance standard cannot
be met for engineering, environmental, or safety reasons. A municipality’s approval of a
variance shall apply to an individual drainage area and design and performance standard
and shall not apply to an entire site or project, unless an applicant provides the required
analysis for each drainage area within the site and each design and performance
standard;

(4) The applicant demonstrates that the proposed design achieves the maximum possible
compliance with the design and performance standards of this Article on-site; and

(5) A mitigation project is implemented, in accordance with the following:

(a) All mitigation projects shall be located in the Pinelands Area and in the same HUC-
14 as the parcel proposed for development. If the applicant demonstrates that no
such mitigation project is available, the municipality may approve a variance that
provides for mitigation within the same HUC-11 as the parcel proposed for
development, provided the mitigation project is located in the Pinelands Area.

(b) The proposed mitigation project shall be consistent with the municipal stormwater
management plan certified by the Pinelands Commission. If said stormwater
management plan does not identify appropriate parcels or projects where mitigation
may occur, the applicant may propose a mitigation project that meets the criteria in
(a) above.

(¢} The mitigation project shall be approved no later than preliminary or final site plan
approval of the major development.

(d) The mitigation project shall be constructed prior to, or concurrently with, the
development receiving the variance.

(e) The mitigation project shall comply with the green infrastructure standards at §163-
23N.

34



(f) if the variance that resulted in the mitigation project being required is from the
green infrastructure standards at §163-23N, then the mitigation project must use
green infrastructure BMPs in Table 1 contained at §163-23E, and/or an alternative
stormwater management measure approved in accordance with §163-23F that meets
the definition of green infrastructure to manage an equivalent or greater area of
impervious surface and an equivalent or greater area of motor vehicle surface as the
area of the major development subject to the variance. Grass swales and vegetative
filter strips may only be used in the mitigation project if the proposed project
additionally includes a green infrastructure BMP other than a grass swale or
vegetative filter strip. The green infrastructure used in the mitigation project must be
sized to manage the water quality design storm established at §163-23P(4), at a
minimum, and is subject to the applicable contributory drainage area limitation
specified at §163-23N(2), as applicable.

(8) A variance from the groundwater recharge standards at §163-230 may be granted
provided that the total volume of stormwater infiltrated by the mitigation project
equals or exceeds the volume required at §163-230.

(h) A variance from the stormwater runoff quality standards at §163-23P may be
granted if the following are met:

[1] The total drainage area of motor vehicle surface managed by the mitigation
project(s) must equal or exceed the drainage area of the area of the major
development subject to the variance and must provide sufficient TSS removal to
equal or exceed the deficit resulting from granting the variance for the major
development; and

[2] The mitigation project must remove nutrients to the maximum extent feasible in
accordance with §163-23P(7).

(i) A variance from the stormwater runoff quantity standards at §163-23Q may be
granted if the following are met:

[1] The applicant demonstrates, through hydrologic and hydraulic analysis,
including the effects of the mitigation project, that the variance will not result in
increased flooding damage below each point of discharge of the major
development;

[2] The mitigation project indirectly discharges to the same watercourse and is
located upstream of the major development subject to the variance; and

[3] The mitigation project provides peak flow rate attenuation in accordance with
§163-23Q(2)(c) for an equivalent or greater area than the area of the major
development subject to the variance. For the purposes of this demonstration,
equivalent includes both size of the area and percentage of impervious surface
and/or motor vehicle surface.

35



(J) The applicant or the entity assuming maintenance responsibility for the associated
major development shall be responsible for preventive and corrective maintenance
(including replacement) of the mitigation project and shall be identified as such in
the maintenance plan established in accordance with §163-29. This responsibility is
not transferable to any entity other than a public agency, in which case a written
agreement with that public agency must be submitted to the review agency.
C. Any approved variance shall be submitted by the municipal review agency to the county
review agency and the NJDEP, by way of a written report describing the variance, as well
as the required mitigation, within 30 days of the approval.

§163-31. Penalties

Any person(s) who erects, constructs, alters, repairs, converts, maintains, or uses any
building, structure or land in violation of this Article shall be subject to the following penalties:

A. Not to exceed $500 for first offense. Not less than $500, nor more than $1,000 for the
second or subsequent offenses.

SECTION 2: Chapter 185, Zoning, Article VL, Pinelands Area Development Procedures and
Standards, Section 185-58, Water quality and treatment, is hereby amended by replacing subsection B(6)

in its entirety with the following:

(6) Surface water runoff, provided that all requirements of Chapter 163, Article II are met.

SECTION 3: All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4: If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase of portion of this ordinance is
for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such portion
shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the

validity of the remaining portions hereof.

SECTION 5: This ordinance shall take effect after second reading and publication as required

by law and upon certification by the New Jersey Pinelands Commission.

36



Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor

Scott J. Turner, Deputy Mayor

Thomas Van Artsdalen, III, Committee Member

Matthew Cox, Committee Member

Frank L. Germanio, Jr., Committee Member

The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a meeting of the Township Committee of the Township of
Dennis on November 28, 2023. Publication will be held on December 05, 2023 and a Public Hearing
will be held at a meeting of the said Township Committee to be held on December 19, 2023 at 5:30
p-m. in the Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road in Dennisville.

ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk

37



TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

COUNTY OF CAPE MAY
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-12

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS ESTABLISHING Part II,
CHAPTER 163B OF THE DENNIS TOWNSHIP CODE, PRIVATELY-OWNED SALT
STORAGE

WHEREAS, Township of Dennis, a township form of government, is governed by
statutes, specifically N.J.S.A. 40A:63-1, et seq. that allow the Township Committee to pass, adopt,
amend and repeal any ordinance or, where permitted, any resolution for any purpose required for
the government of the municipality or for the accomplishment of any public purpose for which the
municipality is authorized to act under general law;

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (“NJDEP”) was
established to protect environmental quality and public health, among other things within New
Jersey;

WHEREAS, the NJDEP issues permits to municipalities which contain general conditions
municipalities are required to comply with in order to ensure they are complying with their
objectives;

WHEREAS, the Township of Dennis currently holds a Tier A Municipal Stormwater
General Permit, which authorizes the discharge of stormwater from small municipal separate
storm sewers;

WHEREAS, occasionally, the NJDEP introduces new conditions municipalities must
comply with to maintain their permitted status;

WHEREAS, the NJDEP has recently introduced a requirement that permitted Tier A
municipalities must introduce certain ordinances, including but not limited to, an ordinance to
prevent stored salt and other solid de-icing materials from being exposed to stormwater within the
Township;

WHEREAS, Part II of the Revised General Ordinances of the Township of Dennis is
currently silent as to the requirements for stored salt and other solid de-icing materials;

WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes it desirable, and in the best interest of the
Township and its citizens to establish a new Chapter within Part I, to ensure the Township remains
compliant with the requirements of the NJDEP so as to maintain the their Tier A permit;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the
Township of Dennis, County of Cape May, State of New Jersey as follows:

Section 1. Article II, Chapter 163B of the Township of Dennis Municipal Code is
hereby established and shall read as follows:



§163B — PRIVATELY-OWNED SALT STORAGE
§163B-1. Purpose:

The purpose of this ordinance is to prevent stored salt and other solid de-icing materials from
being exposed to stormwater.

This ordinance establishes requirements for the storage of salt and other solid de-icing
materials on properties not owned or operated by the municipality (privately-owned), including
residences, in the Township of Dennis to protect the environment, public health, safety and
welfare, and to prescribe penalties for failure to comply.

§163B-2. Definitions:

For the purpose of this ordinance, the following terms, phrases, words and their derivations
shall have the meanings stated herein unless their use in the text of this Chapter clearly
demonstrates a different meaning. When consistent with the context, words used in the present
tense include the future, words used in the plural number include the singular number, and
words used in the singular number include the plural number. The word "shall" is always
mandatory and not merely directory.

A. "De-icing materials" means any granular or solid material such as melting salt or any
other granular solid that assists in the melting of snow.

B. "Impervious surface" means a surface that has been covered with a layer of material so
that it is highly resistant to infiltration by water.

C. "Storm drain inlet" means the point of entry into the storm sewer system.

D. "Permanent structure" means a permanent building or permanent structure that is
anchored to a permanent foundation with an impermeable floor, and that is completely
roofed and walled (new structures require a door or other means of sealing the access

way from wind driven rainfall).

A fabric frame structure is a permanent structure if it meets the following
specifications:

1. Concrete blocks, jersey barriers or other similar material shall be placed around
the interior of the structure to protect the side walls during loading and unloading

of de-icing materials;

2. The design shall prevent stormwater run-on and run through, and the fabric
cannot leak;

3. The structure shall be erected on an impermeable slab;

4. The structure cannot be open sided; and



5. The structure shall have a roll up door or other means of sealing the access way
from wind driven rainfall.

E. "Person" means any individual, corporation, company, partnership,
firm, association, or political subdivision of this State subject to municipal

jurisdiction.

F. "Resident" means a person who resides on a residential property where de-icing
material is stored.

§163B-3. Deicing Material Storage Requirements:

A. Temporary outdoor storage of de-icing materials in accordance with the
requirements below is allowed between October 15th and April 15th;

1. Loose materials shall be placed on a flat, impervious surface in a manner that
prevents stormwater run-through;

2. Loose materials shall be placed at least 50 feet from surface water bodies, storm
drain inlets, ditches and/or other stormwater conveyance channels;

3. Loose materials shall be maintained in a cone-shaped storage pile. If loading or
unloading activities alter the cone-shape during daily activities, tracked
materials shall be swept back into the storage pile, and the storage pile shall be
reshaped into a cone after use;

4, Loose materials shall be covered as follows:

a.

b.

The cover shall be waterproof, impermeable, and flexible;
The cover shall extend to the base of the pile(s);
The cover shall be free from holes or tears;

The cover shall be secured and weighed down around the perimeter to
prevent removal by wind; and

Weight shall be placed on the cover(s) in such a way that minimizes the
potential of exposure as materials shift and runoff flows down to the base
of the pile.

(1) Sandbags lashed together with rope or cable and placed uniformly
over the flexible cover, or poly-cord nets provide a suitable
method. Items that can potentially hold water (e.g., old tires) shall
not be used;



5. Containers must be sealed when not in use; and

6. The site shall be free of all de-icing materials between April 16th and October
14th.

B. De-icing materials should be stored in a permanent structure if a suitable storage
structure is available. For storage of loose de-icing materials in a permanent structure,
such storage may be permanent, and thus not restricted to October 15 - April 15.

C. The property owner, or owner of the de-icing materials if different, shall designate a
person(s) responsible for operations at the site where these materials are stored outdoors,
and who shall document that weekly inspections are conducted to ensure that the
conditions of this ordinance are met. Inspection records shall be kept on site and made
available to the municipality upon request.

1. Residents who operate businesses from their homes that utilize de-icing
materials are required to perform weekly inspections.

§163B-4. Exemptions:

Residents may store de-icing materials outside in a solid-walled, closed container that prevents
precipitation from entering and exiting the container, and which prevents the de- icing materials
from leaking or spilling out. Under these circumstances, weekly inspections are not necessary,
but repair or replacement of damaged or inadequate containers shall occur within 2 weeks.

If containerized (in bags or buckets) de-icing materials are stored within a permanent structure,
they are not subject to the storage and inspection requirements in Section Ill above. Piles of
de-icing materials are not exempt, even if stored in a permanent structure.

This ordinance does not apply to facilities where the stormwater discharges from de-icing
material storage activities are regulated under another NJPDES permit.

§163B-5. Enforcement:

This ordinance shall be enforced by the Township’s Code Enforcement Officer and/or their
designee during the course of ordinary enforcement duties.



§163B-2. Violations and Penalties:

Any person(s) who is found to be in violation of the provisions of this ordinance shall have 72
hours to complete corrective action. Repeat violations and/or failure to complete corrective
action shall result in fines as follows: no less than $100.00 and no more than $2,000.00 per
violation.

Section 2. All other ordinances in conflict or inconsistent with this Ordinance are
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict or inconsistency.

Section 3. Should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance
be declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, the remaining portions of this Ordinance
shall not be affected thereby and shall remain in full force and effect, and to this end the provisions
of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.

Section 4. This Ordinance shall take effect in the time and manner prescribed by law.

Zeth A. Matalucci, Mayor

Scott J. Turner, Deputy Mayor

Thomas VanArtsdalen, 111, Committee Member

Matthew Cox, Committee Member

Frank L. Germanio, Jr., Committee Member

The foregoing Ordinance was introduced at a meeting of the Township Committee of the
Township of Dennis on November 28, 2023. Publication will be held on December 05, 2023 and
a Public Hearing will be held at a meeting of the said Township Committee to be held on December
19, 2023 at 5:30 p.m. in the Municipal Building located at 571 Petersburg Road in Dennisville.

ATTEST
Jacqueline B. Justice, RMC/Clerk




November 20, 2023
05:5% PM

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
Bi1l List By vendor Id

Page No: 1

P.0. Type: All Include Project Line Items: Yes

Range: First to Last
Format: Detail without Line Item Notes

vendors: All Include Non-Budgeted: Y

Rcvd Batch Id Range: First  to Last

Open: N Paid: N

void: N

Revd: Y Held: Y Aprv: N
Bid: Y State: Y Other: Y Exempt: Y

vendor # Name

PO # PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Revd  Chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date  Date Invoice Excl
01201 ATEANTIC CITY ELECTRIC
23-00006 01/03/23 2023 ELECTRIC BILLS
21 0CT 2023 ELECTRIC BILLS 2,991.60 3-01-31-430-071 B UTILITIES - ELECTRIC R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N
22 NOv 2023 ELECTRIC BILLS 2,882.65 3-01-31-430-071 B UTILITIES - ELECTRIC R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N
5,874.25
vendor Total: 5,874,25
04585 BELLEPLAIN V.F.W. POST #6257
23-00411 11/07/23 2022 GENERAL ELECTION
1 2022 GENERAL ELECTION 75,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DISTRICT #3 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
75.00
vendor Total: 75.00
05408 BLANEY DONOHUE & WEINBERG PC
23-00010 01/03/23 2023 ADDITIONAL LEGAL SERVICES B
9 0CT 2023 LEGAL SERVICES 2,407.00 3-01-20-155-027 B LEGAL SERVICES - O/E R 01/03/23 11/20/23 GP206990 N
vendor Total: 2,407.00
05411 BLAUER ASSOCIATES
21-00356 09/16/21 ADA GRANTS ADMIN SERVICES B
34 CHESTNUT ST PARK ADA INV #15 600.00 3-01-55-900-001 B NON-BUDGET ACCT FOR PRIOR A/P R 01/01/23 11/20/23 15 N
35 MUNICIPAL COMPLEX ADA TNV 8 1,500.00 T-16-00-000-201 B SMALL CITIES REVOLVING TRUST R 10/06/22 11/20/23 8 N
2,100.00

23-00397 10/20/23 2024 ADA GRANT APPLICATION
1 2024 ADA GRANT APPLICATION 1,800.00

vendor Total: 3,900.00

T-05-00-000-202

B RECREATION TRUST - SUMMER CAMP

R 10/20/23 11/20/23



TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
8il1l List By vendor Id

November 20, 2023
05:59 PM

Page No: 2

vendor # Name
PO# PO Date Description
Item Description

Contract PO Type

Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description

First  Revd  Chk/void 1099
Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Excl

06305 KATHLEEN BRESAN
23-00415 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES
2 DIST #4 - JUDGE 25.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES
325.00
vendor Total: 325.00

07669 CAPE ASSIST
23-00395 10/18/23 NOVEMBER PEER LEAD CONF 11/17
1 NOVEMBER PEER LEADERSHIP CONF 0.00 6-02-41-506-023
2 NOT TO EXCEED 140.00 G-02-41-506-023
140.00

B MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE FY24 - LOCAL
B MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE FY24 - LOCAL

vendor Total: 140.00

07700 CAPE MAY COUNTY M.U.A.
23-00018 01/03/23 2023 TIPPING FEES
10 ocT 2023 TIPPING FEES

21,641.98 3-01-32-465-078 8 LANDFILL DISPOSAL COSTS

vendor Total: 21,641.98
07706 CAPE MAY COUNTY P.W.A.

23-00017 01/03/23 2023 FUEL RESALE

10 ocT 2023 FUEL RESALE 1,536.22 3-01-31-460-074

vendor Total: 1,53.22
07712 CAPE MAY COUNTY
23-00407 11/03/23 TRAINING LUNCHEON CONTRIBUTION
¢ TRAINING LUNCHEON CONTRIBUTION 500,00 3-01-20-110-044 B MAYOR & COMMITTEE - PROF ASSOC DUES

Vendor Total: 500.00

B UTILITIES OTHER - GASOLINE & DIESEL FUEL R

R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
R 10/18/23 11/20/23 N
R 10/18/23 11/20/23 N
R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N

11/20/23 11/20/23 N

R 11/16/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2023
05:59 PM

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
Bill List By vendor Id

Page No: 3

vendor # Name

PO # PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Revd  Chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date  Invoice Excl
07715 CAPRIONI PORTABLE TOILETS, INC
23-00102 01/12/23 2023 PORTABLE TOILETS B
14 NOV PORTABLE TOILETS NNO 320,00 3-01-28-370-065 B RECREATION - PROGRAM EQUIPMENT R 01/12/23 11/20/23 216968 N
Vendor Total: 320.00
07718 CAPRIONI FAMILY SEPTIC
23-00398 10/23/23 SEPTIC PUMP DOWN-B-54, L-11
1 SEPTIC PUMP DOWN-B-54, L-11 150.00 3-01-20-110-036 B MAYOR & COMMITTEE - OFFICE SUPPLIES R 10/23/23 11/20/23 1661 N
vendor Total: 150.00
09767 COMCAST
23-00004 01/03/23 2023 CABLE/INTERNET
11 NOV 2023 CABLE/INTERNET 501.43 3-01-31-450-077 B UTILITIES OTHER - TELECOMMUNICATIONS R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N
vendor Total: §01.43
10088 KELLY CRAMER
23-00412 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-053 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #1 - JUDGE 25.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
325.00
vendor Total: 325.00
10215 CRYSTAL SPRINGS
23-00019 01/03/23 2023 WATER COOLER RENTAL B
11 OCT 2023 WATER COOLER RENTAL 82.96 3-01-26-310-052 8 BUILDINGS & GROUNDS - OTHER CONTRACTS R 01/03/23 11/20/23 3175133 110123 N
vendor Total: §2.9%
11981 DeBLASIO & ASSOCIATES, PC
18-00574 11/28/18 CHESTNUT STREET PARK PROJECT B
31 INVOICE #28 282.50 C-04-55-018-121 B 18-04 OPEN SPACE IMPROVEMENTS R 08/09/22 11/20/23 28 N
vendor Total: 282.50



TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
Bill List By vendor Id

November 20, 2023
05:59 PM

Page No: 4

vendor # Name

PO# PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Rovd  chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  ACCt Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Excl
12004 DENNIS TWP SCHOOL DISTRICT
23-003%4 10/18/23 BOOSTER/BMX/RED RIB CO-5PONSOR
1 BOOSTER PRESENTATION/BMX SHOW 0.00 G-02-41-506-022 B MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE FY24 - COUNTY R 10/18/23 11/20/23 N
2 RED RIBBON KICK-GFF CO-SPONSOR 300.00 G6-02-41-506-022 B MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE FY24 - COUNTY R 10/18/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
12005 DENNIS TWP FOOTBLL/CHEER ASSOC
23-00396 10/19/23 2023 CLEAN COMMUNITIES B
6 10/28 CLEAN UP 500.00 G-02-41-901-030 B CLEAN COMMUNITIES - O/E R 10/19/23 11/20/23 N
7 11712 CLEAN UP 500.00 G-02-41-901-030 B CLEAN COMMUNITIES - O/E R 10/19/23 11/26/23 N
1,000.00
vendor Total: 1,000.00
12045 DELTA DENTAL OF N)
23-00020 01/03/23 2023 DENTAL COVERAGE
12 DEC 2023 DENTAL COVERAGE 2,440.52  3-01-23-220-092 B EMPLOYEE GROUP INSURANCE R 11/20/23 11/20/23 PM 978256 N
vendor Total: 2,440.52
13520 ALBERT F. DONAHUE
23-00423 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #2 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
13562 DOVETAIL PRESENTATIONS
23-00403 11/01/23 REC-EFELLER EVENT - 12/15/2023
1 REC-EFELLER EVENT - 12/15/2023 0.00 3-01-30-420-066 B SPECIAL EVENTS - PROGRAM SUPPLIES R 11/01/23 11/20/23 N
2 MAGIC SHOW & FACE PAINTING 650.00 3-01-30-420-066 B SPECIAL EVENTS - PROGRAM SUPPLIES R 11/01/23 11/20/23 N
650.00
vendor Total: 650.00



November 20, 2023
05:59 Py

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

Bill List By vendor Id

Page No: 5

vendor # NMame

PO # PO Date Description Contract PO Type First Revd  chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Excl
21425 FRALINGER ENGINEERING, PA
21-00397 10/25/21 ENGINEERING ADA CHESTNUT ST. B
17 ENGINEERING ADA CHESTNUT ST. 325.00 G-02-41-906-021 B SMALL CITIES CDBG GRANT ADA CHESTNUT ST R 10/25/21 11/20/23 84207 N
23-00035 01/03/23 2023 ENGINEERING SERVICES B
14 SOCCER FIELD SURVEY 3,489.00 3-01-20-165-028 B ENGINEERING SERVICES- O/E R 01/03/23 11/20/23 84208 N
15 OCT 2023 ENGINEERING SERVICES 720.00 3-01-20-165-028 B ENGINEERING SERVICES- 0/E R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84206 N
4,209.00
23-00036 01/03/23 2023 ESCROW ENGINEERING
67 SEABOARD ENGINEERING REVIEW 113.00 E-00064 P SEABDARD STORAGE, LLC R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84216 N
68 KLEBAUR ENGINEERING REVIEW 169.50 E-00068 P KLEBAUR, FRANCIS JOHN R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84217 N
69 HACKETT ENGINEERING REVIEW 45.00 P-00098 P HACKET, CORY & DEVON R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84214 N
70 CHANNEL MAR ENGINEERING REVIEW 405.63 P-00101 P CHANNEL MARINE CONSTRUCTION R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84213 N
71 TURNER ENGINEERING REVIEW 765.00 E-00051 P TURNER - 2555 ROUTE 9 R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84215 N
72 SHORESIDE LEGAL ENG REVIEW 630,00 P-00100 P TURNER - 2573 ROUTE 9 R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84212 N
73 EDWARDI ENGINEERING REVIEW 508.50 E-00042 P PINELAND CONSTRUCTION, LLC R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84211 N
74 DENNIS 47 ENGINEERING REVIEW 765.00 E-00057 P DENNIS 47 DEVELOPERS ESCROW R 11/20/23 11/20/23 84210 N
75 KIELY ESCROW REVIEW 90.00 P-00004 P KIELY HOLDINGS, LLC R 11/20/23 11/20/23 34209 N
3,491.63
Vendor Total: 8,025.63
21487 F&W GRAFIX
23-00409 11/06/23 SINGLE SIDED BANNERS
1 SINGLE SIDED BANNER 96"%36" 216,00 T-05-00-000-206 B RECREATION TRUST - BASERALL/SOFTBALL R 11/06/23 11/20/23 N
2 SINGLE SIDED BANNER 48"X36" 54.00 T-05-00-000-206 B RECREATION TRUST - BASERALL/SOFTBALL R 11/06/23 11/20/23 N
270.00
vendor Total: 270.00
21640  NINA FUQUA
23-00424 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2023
05:59 PM

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

Bill List By vendor Id

Page Ko: 6

vendor # Name

PO# PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Revd  Chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date  Invoice Excl
21640 NINA FUQUA Continued
23-00424 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER  Continued
2 DIST #2 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vVendor Total: 300.00
22894 GARDNER TRUE VALUE HARDWARE
23-00093 01/06/23 2023 MISC. PARTS & SUPPLIES B
11 0CT 2023 MISC. PARTS/SUPPLIES 205.14 3-01-26-290-036 B PUBLIC WORKS - SUPPLIES R 10/19/23 11/20/23 N
Vendor Total: 205.14
26645  CHARLES HAIG
23-00417 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #6 - JUDGE 25.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
325.00
vendor Total: 325.00
28715 AMERICAN BOUNCE
23-00405 11/02/23 2023 CHRISTMAS RENTALS
1 2023 CHRISTMAS RENTALS 1,995.00 3-01-30-420-065 B SPECIAL EVENTS - PROGRAM EQUIP R 11/02/23 11/20/23 N
Vendor Total: 1,995.00
36405 J.W. PEDERSEN ARCHITECT. P.C.
22-00238 05/13/22 MUN COMPLEX ADA COMPLAINCE B
4 MUN COMPLEX ADA COMPLAINCE 25,000.00 T-16-00-000-201 B SMALL CITIES REVOLVING TRUST R 05/13/22 11/20/13 4175 N

vendor Total: 25,000.00

38677 HEATHER L. CRAWLEY
23-00433 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00

3-01-20-120-058

B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES

R 11/07/23 11/20/23



November 20, 2023 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS Page No: 7
05:59 PM Bi1l List By Vendor Id

Vendor # Name

PO # PO Date Description Contract PD Type First  Revd  Chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  ACCt Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date  Date Invoice Excl
38677 HEATHER L. CRAWLEY Continued
23-00433 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER  Continued
2 DIST #4 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00

38678 HEIDI KERN
23-00414 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/ Nc\ 23 N
2 DIST #3 - JUDGE 25.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 H_,\ 0/23 N
325.00
Vendor Total: 325.00
42427 PETER A. LEITCH
23-00441 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/67/23 11/ No\ 23 N
2 DIST #6 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/13 [
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
43000 ROBIN S. LIGHT
23-00439 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 E\ 20/13 N
2 DIST #6 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00

43032 LIBERTY PARKS &PLAYGROUNDS INC
23-00186 03/28/23 ADA CHESTNUT ST PLAYGROUND
1 ADA CHESTNUT ST PLAYGROUND 123,702.00 6-02-41-906-021 B SMALL CITIES CDBG GRANT ADA CHESTNUT ST R 03/28/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2023 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
05:59 M Bi11 List By vendor Id

Page No: &

vendor # Name

PO# PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Revd  chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount cCharge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date  Invoice Excl
43032 LIBERTY PARKS &PLAYGROUNDS INC  Continued
23-00186 03/28/23 ADA CHESTNUT ST PLAYGROUND  Continued
2 SHIPPING 7,878.00 G-02-41-906-021 B SMALL CITIES (DBG GRANT ADA CHESTNUT ST R 03/28/23 11/20/3 N
131,580.00
vendor Total:  131,580.00
43565 GARRETT & BATASTINI PA
23-00037 01/03/23 2023 ESCROW REVIEW
11 KEILY ESCROW REVIEW 384.00 P-00094 P KIELY HOLDINGS, LLC R 11/20/23 11/20/23 5049 N
12 HACKET ESCROW REVIEW 320,00 P-00098 P HACKET, CORY & DEVON R 11/20/23 11/20/23 5050 N
13 SHORESIDE LEGAL ESCROW REVIEW 320.00 P-00100 P TURNER - 2573 ROUTE 9 R 11/20/23 11/20/23 5051 N
14 TURNER PARTNERS ESCROW REVIEW 320.00 P-00099 P TURNER - CORSON TAVERN ROAD R 11/20/23 11/20/23 5052 N
1,344,00
23-00038 01/03/23 2023 LAND USE ATTORNEY B
13 OCT 2023 LAND USE ATTORNEY 500,00 3-01-21-185-027 B PLANNING & ZONING - LEGAL SERVICES R 01/03/23 11/20/23 5053 N
vendor Total: 1,844.00
50731 NEW JERSEY MOTOR VEHICLE COMM
23-00455 11/20/23 2024 CAIR ADMIN FEES
1 2024 CAIR ADMIN FEES 150,00 3-01-26-290-036 B PUBLIC WORKS - SUPPLIES R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N
vendor Total: 150.00
53520 OCEAN VIEW VOLUNTEER FIRE €0,
23-00410 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION 150.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DISTRICTS #2 & #8 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
150.00

vendor Total: 150.00



November 20, 2023 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS Page No: 9
05:59 Pm gitl List By vendor Id

vendor # Name
PO# PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Rovd  Chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Excl

58088 PHOENIX ADVISORS, LLC
23-00058 01/03/23 2023 FINANCIAL ADVISOR
1 2023 FINANCIAL ADVISOR 1,600.00 3-01-20-101-036 B ADMINISTRATOR - OFFICE SUPPLIES R 01/03/23 11/20/23 N

vendor Total: 1,600.00
59504 THE PRESS OF ATLANTIC CITY
23-00028 01/03/23 2023 PUBLIC NOTICES
13 0CT 2023 PUBLIC NOTICES 150.00 3-01-20-120-021 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - LEGAL ADVERTISING R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N
Vendor Total: 150.00

67630 RUTGERS, THE STATE UNIV. OF NJ
23-00449 11/09/23 LOCAL ELECTIONS ADMINISTRATION

1 LOCAL ELECTIONS ADMINISTRATION 0.00 3-01-20-145-042 B TAX COLLECTION - EDUCATION/TRAIN R “_.H\%\Nw 11/20/23 N
2 COURSE #MC-4002/FA23-1 653.00 3-01-20-145-042 B TAX COLLECTION - EDUCATION/TRAIN R 11/09/23 11/20/23 N
653.00
vendor Total: 653.00

68982 SEASHORE FOOD DISTRIBUTORS,INC

23-00118 01/30/23 2023 FOOD ORDERS B
3 2023 SENIOR RESTOCK 186.02 T7-05-00-000-301 B RECREATION TRUST - SENIOR CENTER O/E R 01/30/23 11/20/23 100178 N
vendor Total; 186,02
63986 SEASHORE ASPHALT CORP,
23-00087 01/06/23 2023 COLD PATCH B
9 2023 COLD PATCH 89,10 3-01-26-290-021 B PUBLIC WORKS - ROAD REPAIRS/STORM DRAIN R 01/06/23 11/20/23 54948 N
vendor Total: 89.10

069634 SANDRA P. SIMMERMAN
23-00425 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2023
05:59 M

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS

Bi11 List By Vendor Id

Page No: 10

vendor # Name

PO # PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Revd Chk/void 1099
Item Description amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date  Invoice Excl
69634 SANDRA P. SIMMERMAN Continued
23-00425 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER  Continued
2 DIST #3 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/83 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
69643 GERTRUDE SINGER
23-00421 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
vendor Total: 300.00
0198 R.W. SMITH WEEL DRILLING
23-00226 05/03/23 WELL REPAIR B
3 WELL REPAIR 950.00 3-01-28-375-042 B PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS - EQUIPMENT R 07/31/23 11/20/23 13672 N
4 WELL REPAIR 500.00 3-01-28-375-042 B PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS - EQUIPMENT R 07/31/23 11/20/23 13673 N
5 WELL REPAIR 4,697.00 3-01-28-375-042 B PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS - EQUIPMENT R 07/31/23 11/20/23 13674 N
' 6,147.00
vendor Total: 6,147.00
70559  SOUTH JERSEY GAS
23-00005 01/03/23 2023 NATURAL GAS REC.
10 OCT 2023 NATURAL GAS REC. 240,14 3-01-31-446-070 B UTILITIES OTHER - PROPANE R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N
vendor Total: 240.14
70642 SPATIAL DATA LOGIC INC.
23-00324 06/22/23 2023 CONSTRUCTION SOFTWARE
6 TRAINING 3,800.00 T1-17-00-000-201 B CONSTRUCTION CODE - O/E R 06/22/23 11/20/23 N
7 DATA IMPORT MC SYSTEMS 3,200.00 T1-17-00-000-201 B CONSTRUCTION CODE - O/E R 06/22/23 11/20/23 N
7,000.00

vendor Total: 7,000.00



November 20, 2023 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
05:59 PH Bill List By vendor Id

Page No; 11

Vendor # Name

PO # PO Date Description ontract PO Type First  Revd  Chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date  Invoice Exc]
71185 STAPLES ADVANTAGE
23-00002 01/03/23 2023 OFFICE SUPPLIES
8 OCT 2023 OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,037.25 3-01-20-150-036 B TAX ASSESSMENT - OFFICE SUPPLIES R 10/05/23 11/20/23 8072135950 N
79.99 3-01-20-101-036 B ADMINISTRATOR - OFFICE SUPPLIES
699.99 3-01-20-110-0%3 B MAYOR & COMMITTEE - OFFICE EQUIPMENT
172,61 3-01-28-370-036 B RECREATION - OFFICE SUPPLIES
1,989.84
vendor Totai: 1,989.84
71326 SUBURBAN PROPANE - 2115
23-00033 01/03/23 2023 PROPANE
23 MUSEUM 2115-225153 11/9/23 84,88 3-01-31-446-070 B UTILITIES OTHER - PROPANE R 11/20/23 11/20/23 603918 N
vendor Total: 84.88
71612 JILL H, SWAGLER
23-00426 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #3 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
73435 WILLIAM F, LATHERS
23-00420 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #1 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
Vendor Total: 300.00
74352 TOTAL TURF SOLUTIONS
23-00228 05/04/23 FERT APPLICATIONS B
5 FERT APPLICATION 800.00 3-01-28-375-031 B PARKS & PLAYGROUNDS - FIELD MAINT R 05/04/23 11/20/23 268729 N

vendor Total: 800.00



TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
Bill List By vendor Id

November 20, 2023
05:59 pM

Page No: 12

vendor # Name

PO # PO Date Description Contract PO Type

First  Revd  Chk/void 1099

Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date Invoice Excl
75217 NOEL TURNER
23-00438 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #6 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
78273 UPPER TOWNSHIP
23-00014 01/03/23 2023 COURT FEE SHARE
11 oCT 2023 COURT FEE SHARE 770.94  3-01-08-180-104 R MUN. COURT RECEIPTS/UPPER TOWNSHIP SHARE R 11/20/23 11/20/23 N
vendor Total: 770.94
79833 FLORENCE VAGRATIAN
23-00419 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #8 - JUDGE 25.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
325.00
vendor Total: 325.00
81072 VITAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC.
23-00389 10/10/23 MASTER FILE CARTRIDGE ADDED
1 MASTER FILE CARTRIDGE ADDED 100.00 3-01-20-145-059 B TAX COLLECTION - DATA PROCESSING R 10/10/23 11/20/23 N
vendor Total: 100.00
84295 CAROL WEYGAND
23-00416 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #5 - JUDGE 25,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
325.00

vendor Total: 325.00



November 20, 2023
05:59 M

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS Page No: 13

Bi1l List By vendor Id

vendor # Name
PO # PO Date Description
Item Description

Contract PO Type First  Rovd  Chk/void 1099
Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date Invoice Excl

89614 CINTAS

23-00261 06/04/23 FIRST AID
8 FIRST AID
9 FIRST AID - REC

vendor Total:

991001  CHERYL MACELLARQ

23-00413 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

2 DIST #2 - JUDGE

vendor Total:

991002  NORMAN SPURGEON

13-00432 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 DIST #4

Vendor Total:

999204  KATHY L. GREENE

23-00443 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 DIST #7

vendor Totai:

999105  CHARLES M. GREENE

23-00418 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

B
63.69 3-01-26-290-036 B PUBLIC WORKS - SUPPLIES R 06/04/23 11/20/23 5183021710 N
156.80 3-01-28-370-066 B RECREATION - PROGRAM SUPPLIES R 07/20/23 11/20/23 5183021751 N
220.49
220.49
300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
25.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
325.00
325.00
300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300,00
300.00
300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
300.00
300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2013 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS Page No: 14
05:59 PM Bill List By vendor Id

Vendor # Name

PG # PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Revd  Chk/void 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date  Invoice Excl
999105  CHARLES M, GREENE continued
23-00418 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER  Continued
2 DIST #7 - JUDGE 25.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
325.00
vendor Total: 325.00

999114  REGINA HANKINS
23-00440 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R :.\E.\Nw 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #6 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R HH\ou\Nw 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
099117  MICHAEL VAGRATIAN
23-00446 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #8 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
999118 CHRISTINE CHAMPAGNE
23-00434 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #5 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.60

999130  CRAIG C. KEREWICH
23-00431 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2023
05:59 PM

TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
Bill List By vendor Id

Page No: 15

vendor # Name
PO# PO Date Description

gontract PO Type

First  Revd  Chk/void 1099

Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date Date  Invoice Exc]
999130  CRATG C. KEREWICH Continued
23-00431 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER  Continued
2 DIST #4 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
Vendor Total: 300.00
999131  KAREN FELTON
23-00437 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL-ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #2 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
999133 DENNIS P. GALLAGHER
23-00427 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #3 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300,00
vendor Total: 300.00
999134  JOANN M. GALLAGHER
23-00428 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #3 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
999135  THOMAS D. KENDRICK
23-00429 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2023 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
05:59 PM Bill List By vendor Id

Page No: 16

vendor # Name

PO # PG Date Description Contract PO Type First  Revd  chk/veid 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date  Date  Invoice Excl
999135  THOMAS D. KENDRICK Continued
23-00429 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER  Centinued
2 DIST #3 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
999136  DOREEN A. GREGORY
23-00435 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/83 N
2 DIST 45 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300,00
vendor Total: 300.00
999137  DANIEL MEENAN
23-00436 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #5 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTIQN EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
999138  DORQTHY M., LEITCH
23-00422 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #1 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300,00
vendor Total: 300.00

999139 JOHN A. CARSON
23-00444 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES

R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N



November 20, 2023 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS Page No: 17
05:59 PM Bi11 List By vendor Id

Vendor # Name

PO# PO Date Description Contract PO Type First Revd  Chk/veid 1099
Item Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description stat/Chk Enc Date Date  Date Invoice Excl
999139 JOHN A. CARSON Continued
23-00444 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER Continued
2 DIST #7 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00

999140  RAYMOND P. STRANO
23-00445 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300,00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #7 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00

999141  KELLY A. O'BRIEN-BAKER
23-00430 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER

1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #4 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
999142  MICHAEL S. YOUMANS
23-00447 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
2 DIST #8 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11720/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00

999148  DOROTHY L. HUPPERICH
23-00442 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER
1 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER 300.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N



TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS
Bil11 List By vendor Id

November 20, 2023
05:59 pM

Page No: 18

vendor # Name

PO# PO Date Description Contract PO Type First  Rcvd  Chk/void 1099
Ttem Description Amount Charge Account  Acct Type Description Stat/chk Enc Date Date  Date Invoice Excl
999148  DOROTHY L. HUPPERICH Continued
23-00442 11/07/23 2023 GENERAL ELECTION WORKER  Continued
2 DIST #7 0.00 3-01-20-120-058 B TOWNSHIP CLERK - ELECTION EXPENSES R 11/07/23 11/20/23 N
300.00
vendor Total: 300.00
KELTEX  KELTEX IMPRINTED APPAREL, INC.
23-00451 11/13/23 PEER LEADERSHIP TEE-SHIRTS
1 PEER LEADERSHIP TEE-SHIRTS 0.00 6-02-41-506-023 B MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE FY24 - LOCAL R 11/13/23 11/20/23 N
2 STRENGTHENING YOUTH 160.00 G6-02-41-506-023 B MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE FY24 - LOCAL R 11/13/23 11/20/23 43016 N
3 QUANITY & SIZES AS PER QUOTE 30.00 6-02-41-506-022 B MUNICIPAL ALLIANCE FY24 - COUNTY R 11/13/23 11/20/23 N
190.00
vendor Total: 190.00
Total Purchase Orders: 81 Total P.0. Line Items: 145 Total List Amount: 242,243.04  Total Void Amount: 0.00




November 20, 2023
05:59 P

TOWNSHLP OF DENNIS

Bill List By vendor Id

Page No: 19

Totals by Year-Fund

Fund Description Fund Budget Rcvd Budget Held  Budget Total  Revenue Total 6/L Total  Project Total Total
3-01 67,062.95 0.00 67,062.95 770.94 0.00 0.00 67,833.89

3-18 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,514.63 2,514.63

3-42 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 508.50 508.50

3-51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 765.00 765.00

3-57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 765.00 765.00

3-64 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113.00 113.00

3-68 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 169.50 169.50

Year Total: 67,062.95 0.00 67,062.95 770.94 0.00 4,835.63 72,669.52

GENERAL CAPITAL FUND C-04 282.50 0.00 282.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 282.50
G-02 133,535.00 0.00 133,535.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 133,535.00

RECREATION TRUST FUND T-05 2,256.02 0.00 2,256.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,256.02
SMALL CITIES REVOLVING TRUST T-16 26,500.00 0.00 26,500.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,500.00
CONSTRUCTION CODE T-17 7,000.00 0.00 7,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7,000.00
Year Total: 35,756.02 0.00 35,756.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 35,756.02

Total Of A1l Funds: 23b,636.47 .00 236,636.4/ 770,94 0.00 4,835.63 247,243,04



November 20, 2023 TOWNSHIP OF DENNIS Page No: 20

05:59 PM Bi11 List By vendor Id
Project Description Project No. Revd Total Held Total Project Total
PINELAND CONSTRUCTION, LLC E-00042 508.50 0.00 508.50
TURNER - 2555 ROUTE 9 E-00051 765.00 0.00 765.00
DENNIS 47 DEVELOPERS ESCROW E-00057 765.00 0.00 765.00
SEABOARD STORAGE, LLC E-00064 113,00 0.00 113.00
KLEBAUR, FRANCIS JOHN E-00068 169.50 0.00 169.50
KIELY HOLDINGS, LLC P-00094 474,00 0.00 474,00
HACKET, CORY & DEVON P-00098 365.00 0.00 365.00
TURNER - CORSON TAVERN ROAD P-00099 320.00 0.00 320.00
TURNER - 2573 ROUTE 9 P-00100 950.00 0.00 950.00
CHANNEL MARINE CONSTRUCTION P-00101 405.63 0.00 405.63

Total 0f A11 Projects: 4,335.63 0.00 4,335.63



